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A WARNING ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this annual report that are subject to risks and uncertainties. These
forward-looking statements include information about possible or assumed future results of our financial
condition, operations, plans, objectives and performance. When we use the words “believe,” ‘‘expect,”
“anticipate,” *estimate”™ or similar expressions, we are making forward-looking statements. Many possible events
or factors could affect our future financial results and performance. This could cause our resulis or performance
to differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements. You should consider these risks
when you review this annual report, along with the following possible events or factors:

*  our ability to maintain profitability over time;

+  the successful execution of our growth strategies;

*  our franchisees’ adherence to our practices, policies and procedures;
+  the impact of competition; and

* the availability of working capital.

Additional risks and uncertainties are described elsewhere in this annual report and in detail under “ltem
1A, Risk Factors.” You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which
reflect management’s analysis only as of the date of this annual report. Except where required by law, we do not
undertake an obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or changed circumstances. Unless the context requires otherwise, the terms “we,”
“us,” and “our” refer to Diedrich Coffee, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its predecessors and subsidiaries.

PART 1
Item 1. Business.
Overview

Diedrich Coffee, Inc. is a specialty coffee roaster, wholesaler and retailer. Our brands include Diedrich
Coffee, Gloria Jean’s, and Coffee People. The majority of our revenue is generated from wholesale customers
located across the United States. Our wholesale operation sells a wide variety of whole bean and ground coffee as
well as single serve coffee products through a network of office coffee service (“OCS”) distributors, chain and
independent restaurants, coffeehouses, other hospitality operators and specialty retailers. We operate a large
coffee roasting facility in Castroville, California that supplies freshly roasted coffee to all of our wholesale and
retail customers.

We also sell brewed, espresso-based and various blended beverages primarily made from our own fresh
roasted premium coffee beans, as well as light food items, whole bean coffee and accessories, through our
company operated and franchised retail locations. The critical components for each of our retail locations include
high quality, fresh roasted coffee and superior customer service by knowledgeable employees. As of June 27,
2007, we owned and operated 9 retail locations and franchised 144 other retail locations under the brands
described above, for a total of 153 retail coffee outlets. Although the retail specialty coffee industry is presently
dominated by a single company, which operates over eight thousand domestic retail locations, we are one of the
nation’s largest specialty coffee retailers with annual system-wide revenues in excess of $59 million. System-
wide revenues include sales from company operated and franchise locations. Our retail units are located in 30
states,




Recent Developments

Our strategic direction is currenily focused on growing the wholesale business segment and the related
distribution channels, including franchise stores. As part of the plan to narrow the focus of the retail business
segment to only franchise operations, our plans are to close all Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People company-
operated locations, but retain the two brands for our wholesale and franchise operations. In conjunction with the
transaction with Starbucks Corporation, we have sold or closed a substantial majority of Diedrich Coffee and
Coffee People company-operated locations. Except for the three Diedrich Coffee stores that we currently operate,
our results of company-operated Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People retail operations are reported as
discontinued operations for all periods presented. The financial results of company-operated Gloria Jean’s retail
operations are reported as continuing operations for all periods presented.

As previously reported, on September 14, 2006, we and Starbucks Corporation entered into an asset
purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which Starbucks agreed to purchase our leasehold interests in
up to 40 of the 47 locations where we operated retail stores under the Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People brands
(the “Company Stores”), along with certain related fixtures and equipment, improvements, prepaid items, and
ground lease improvements, and to assume certain liabilities as set forth in the Agreement. On December 12,
2006, our stockholders approved the transaction with Starbucks at the annual stockholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the actual amount paid by Starbucks was dependent on which and how many of
the Company Stores would ultimately be transferred to Starbucks. Ten percent of the amouni paid to the
Company upon transfer of the Company Stores was required to be deposited into an escrow fund to be held in
connection with the Company’s indemnification obligations.

As part of the Agreement, we have agreed to a non-compete provision that for three years after the closing
of the transaction with Starbucks, restricts our ability to operate or have any interest in the ownership or
operation of any entity operating any retail specialty coffee stores in any city where a Company Store was
located at the time that the Agreement was executed. The non-compete provision applies only to stores opened
after the date of the Agreement and does not apply to (1) any retail stores operated under the “Gloria Jean’s”
brand name, (2) wholesale sales to retail businesses that are not operated by the Company, or other non-retail
businesses, or (3) the conversion of Company-operated stores existing on the date of the Agreement to franchise
stores. We have also agreed that we will not solicit any Starbucks employee to enter employment with us for
three years after the closing of the transaction.

The closing for the transfer of the initial group of Company Stores occurred on January 16, 2007, which
related to the transfer of 15 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People leaseholds and related assets to Starbucks in
exchange for a cash payment of approximately $5,560,000 and the deposit of approximately $618,000 into the
escrow fund. In connection with the closing for a second group of Company stores, which occurred on
February 2, 2007, we transferred an additional 13 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People leaseholds and related
assets to Starbucks and agreed to retain three Company stores that were the subject of the Agreement in exchange
for a cash payment of approximately $5,565,000 and the deposit of approximately $514,000 into the escrow
fund. In connection with the third ctosing, which occurred on February 9, 2007, we transferred one additional
Diedrich Coffee store’s leasehold and related assets to Starbucks in exchange for a cash payment of
approximately $63,000 and the deposit of approximately $7.000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the
fourth closing, which occurred on February 28, 2007, we transferred one additional Diedrich Coffee store’s
leasehold and related assets to Starbucks in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $586,000 to the
Company and the deposit of approximately $65,000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the fifth closing,
which occurred on March 23, 2007, we transferred one additional Diedrich Coffee store’s leasehold and related
assets to Starbucks in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $220,000 and the deposit of approximately
$25,000 into the escrow fund, In connection with the sixth closing, which occurred on April 20, 2007, we closed
our last transfer under the Agreement with Starbucks with the transfer of one Diedrich Coffee store’s leasehold
and related assets in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $168,000 and the deposit of approximately
$18,000 into the escrow fund. As of June 27, 2007, we had approximately $1,247,000 held in escrow which was
subsequently paid to us in full on July 19, 2007.




In separate transactions with three parties other than Starbucks, we transferred three retail store location
leaseholds and related assets on January 31, 2007, transferred certain assets {excluding lcaseholds) relating to
two retail store locations on February 5, 2007 and transferred certain assets (excluding its leasehold) relating to
two retail store locations on March 9, 2007, and received proceeds from these transactions of $620,000 and
$10,000, and $25,000, respectively. ' |

Sale of International Franchise Operations

On February 11, 2005, we completed the sale of our Gloria Jean’s international franchise operations.
Proceeds from the sale of the 338 franchised units were a cash payment of $16,000,000 and notes of $7,020,000
payable over the next six years. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Results of Operations—Sale of International Franchise Operations.”

Coempany Background

Our predecessor company, Cart E. Diedrich & Sons, Inc., commenced operations in Orange County,
California in 1972 and changed its name to Diedrich Coffee when its first retail store opened. We incorporated in
California in 1985. We remained a small, family operated business with only three retail locations until 1992. We
grew rapidly from 1992 to 1996 through construction of new Diedrich Coffee coffeehouses in Orange County
and the acquisition of coffeehouses operated under other brands in Houston, Denver and San Diego, all of which
were converted into Diedrich Coffee coffechouses. In August 1996, we reincorporated under Delaware law as
Diedrich Coffee, Inc., and completed an initial public offering of our common stock in September 1996. On
July 7, 1999, we acquired Coffee People, Inc. The Coffee People, Inc. brands included Gloria Jean's, one of the
leaders in the mall coffee store market, Coffee People, based primarily in Portland, Oregon, and Coffee
Plantation, based primarily in Phoenix, Arizona. The Coffee Plantation coffechouses have been sold or closed.
We continue to operate three brands: Diedrich Coffee, Gloria Jean’s and Coffee People.

Industry Overview

According to the National Coffee Association of U.S.A., Inc. (the “NCA™), in 2007, 179.7 million adults, or
81% of the population over the age of 18, drank coffee daily or occasionally, which represents a 4.4 million-
persan increase from the 79% of the population over the age of 18 in 2004. The NCA also reported that daily and
occasional consumption of gourmet coffee has increased over the past six years from 9.0% of the adult
population in 2000 to over 16.0% of the adult population in 2006.

The United States coffee market consists of two distinct product categories:
. commercial ground roast, mass-merchandised coffee; and

*  specialty coffees, which include gourmet coffees (premium grade Arabica coffees sold in whole
bean and ground form) and premium coffees (upscale coffees mass-marketed by the leading
coffee companies).

We believe that several factors have contributed to the increase in demand for gourmet coffee including:
= greater consumer awareness of gourmet coffee as a result of its increasing availability;
=  increased quality differentiation over commercial grade coffees by consumers;

= increased demand for all premium food products, including gourmet coffee, where the differential
in price from the commercial brands is small compared to the perceived improvement in product
quality and taste; and

=  ease of preparation of gourmet coffees resulting from the increased use of automatic drip coffee
makers and home espresso machines.




Our Business Model

Qur business objective is a logical extension of our Mission Statement, which states: “We sell great coffee.”
Therefore, our objective is to sell coffee, without compromising our commitment to quality. We buy only the
finest quality green coffee beans available, fresh roast them with our proprietary recipes and subject them to a
rigorous internal quality control process. We ensure that care is taken at each and every step of the production
and distribution process to preserve that quality.

~ We principally sell our coffee through two distribution channels, and strive to target our resources to
increase efficiency and profitability while growing the business within this framework. These two distribution
channels are wholesale distribution and franchise retail outlets. While each of these channels have different
customers, cost structures, overhead requirements, competitors,'and other fundamental differences, we believe
our commitment to quality is essential to successful growth in both of these areas. Important financial
information for each of our business segments can be found in Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements.

Wholesale Distribution

As of June 27, 2007, we had over 800 coffee wholesale accounts not affiliated with our retail locations,
which purchase coffee from us under the Diedrich Coffee, Coffee People and Gloria Jean’s brands. Our current
wholesale accounts are in the OCS (Office Coffee Services) market, chain restaurants, independent restaurants
and other hospitality industry accounts and specialty retailers. Additionally, our franchise agreements require
Gloria Jean's, Coffee People and Diedrich Coffee franchisees to purchase substantially all of their coffee from
us, and we record a wholesale gross profit on such sales.

Single Serve Coffee

During fiscal 2000, we entered into a licensing agreement with Keurig, Inc. whereby we utilize Keurig’s
patented single service coffee brewing technology and its extensive distribution channels within the Away from
Home (AFH) and At Home (AH) single serve markets. This multi-channel strategy provides widespread
exposure to our three brands in a variety of settings. Utilizing our dedicated sales force, we sell to and ship
directly to OCS distributors, who then provide our K-Cups® along with equipment and other services to office
customers. In addition to Keurig® single-serve K-Cups®, we sell our premium coffees to OCS distributors in
whole bean and ground coffee form for use in tradiiional coffee brewing equipment found in most office
environments.

In addition to being a leader in office-based single-cup brewing choices, Keurig is growing in the AH single
serve market. Keurig brewers and K- Cups® are currently sold in over 8,500 retail locations including Macy’s,
Bloomingdale’s, Target, Linens ‘n Things, Bed, Bath & Beyond, Costco, and B)’s. We are actively participating
in this retail channel with the sale of our three branded K- Cups® through many of these retailers and the sale of
at-home brewers and K-cups in most of our franchise stores and internet web stores.

On May 2, 2006, Green Mountain Coffee Roasters, Inc. and Keurig, Inc. announced they had agreed to a
transaction in which Green Mountain Coffee would acquire all the outstanding shares of Keurig, Inc. that the
Company did not already own. After the acquisition, Keurig would be a wholly-owned subsidiary of Green
Mountain Coffee. On June 15, 2006 Green Mountain Coffee Roasters, Inc. purchased the remaining interest in
Keurig, Inc. and at which time Keurig became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Green Mountain Coffee.

While there can be no assurances, we do not anticipate any negative effects to our licensing agreement
resulting from Green Mountain’s acquisition of Keurig, Inc. Our current agreement with Keurig, Inc., which
expires in March 2010, provides for automatic five-year renewals of the agreement if we meet certain volume
thresholds, which we are currently exceeding.

Foodservice & Other Wholesale Accounts

As specialty coffee has grown in overall popularity, more foodservice customers are demanding a high
quality cup of coffee as a supplement to a meal. We supply coffee on a wholesale basis to a wide variety of

4




foodservice customers from large chain restaurants to smaller, often independent, operators in the restaurant and
hospitality industries and to specialty retailers. Many of our wholesale accounts, such as hotels, restaurants, golf
courses and airport concessions have their own “captive” customer base.

Our territory sales managers are hands-on retail coffee experts who help our customers achieve the goals
they have set for their business through on site trainings, merchandising and creative marketing and POP
materials. We not only supply coffee to these customers, but also approve their equipment and train their
employees to ensure that the quality of coffee served meets our rigorous quality standards. We are a true partner
to our foodservice customers, not just a vendor. We believe partners should do whatever they possibly can to
help grow business and ensure success. It is common for our foodservice customers to specify in their menus that
they serve Diedrich Coffee which provides us with additional exposure to the restaurants’ patrons and help build
brand awareness. ‘

Retail Outlets

Our retail outlet distribution channel is primarily focused on growth through franchised retail outlets. The
critical success factors are the same whether company operated or franchised—quality of product, service and
atmosphere. The economic model and cost structures are also the same for each type of location at the retail unit
level, notwithstanding their different direct financial impacts on us in our roles as both an operator and franchisor
of retail outlets. Furthermore, the potential contribution of any given outlet, as measured by the amount of
roasted coffee produced through our roasting plant, is the same.

Our primary retail brand is Gloria Jean’s, which consists of retail units located throughout the United States.
Over 95% of Gloria Jean's retail units are franchised. The following table summarizes the relative sizes of each
of our brands on a unit count basis and changes in unit count for each brand over the past two years.

Net Net
transfers transfers
between between
the the
Company Company
Units at and Units at Closed/ and Units at
June 29, Closed/ Franchise June 28, Sold Franchise June 27,
2005 Opened Sold (A) 2006 Opened (C) (B) 2007

Gloria Jean’s Brand
Company Operated 11 1 (n (6) 5 — (1} 2 6
Franchise - Domestic 3216 @) 6 139 13 a9 @ 13
Subtotal Gloria Jean’s 143 17 (6§ — 44 13 4y — 142
Diedrich Coffee Brand
Company Operated 26 1 — (1) 26 —_ (23) — 3
Franchise — Domestic _7 _1 £ ) __1_ _8 — _(4) — _4
Subtotal Diedrich »Bo 2z L = ¥ = @ = 7
Coffee People Brand
Company QOperated 25 4 ) (N 2 — (18) 3 —
Franchise — Domestic — — - __l_ 1 — — _3 _4
Subtotal Coffee People _%5_ _i ﬁ) — _22_ - _@) — “_i
Total 201 2 _(2_4) — 200 13 @) — i53

|
|
|

(A) Six company operated Gloria Jean’s, one company operated Diedrich Coffee, and one company operated
Coffee People coffeehouses were transferred to franchisees during fiscal year 2006.




(B) Two company operated Gloria Jean’s and three company operated Coffee People coffeehouses were
transferred to franchisees during fiscal year 2007.

(C) On September 14, 2006, we and Starbucks entered into an agreement pursuant to which Starbucks agreed to
purchase our leasehold interest in certain locations where we operate retail stores under the Diedrich Coffee
and Coffee People brands. During the current fiscal year, the Company completed the transaction with a
transfer of 32 retail stores to Starbucks Corporation. See “Recent Developments” above,

Gloria Jean's

Gloria Jean’s is a leader in the flavored specialty coffee market, with 142 coffee stores in 30 states
throughout the United States. Many of our Gloria Jean’s coffee stores are located in high traffic shopping malls.
The consumer traffic pattern in our mall-based stores is driven by mall hours and dynamics. Our mall-based
stores are generally busiest on weekends and during holiday seasons. The typical Gloria Jean’s domestic coffee
store is staffed with a manager and a staff of 10 to 15 part-time hourly employees who fill the operating shifts.
Gloria Jean’s outlets tend to open earlier than most mall stores, but in general, operating hours coincide with mall
hours. In addition to coffee beverages and fresh roasted whole bean coffees, Gloria Jean’s carries a wide
selection of gift items, coffee accessories, and a small selection of bakery items to complement beverage sales.
Gloria Jean’s stores sell a wide variety of flavored and non-flavored coffees, with beverage sales representing
approximately 75% of overall sales.

The success of Gloria Jean’s coffee retail stores depend on three critical components: product quality,
product selection, and service.

Product Quality. Gloria Jean’s has been a pioneer in developing high quality, flavored, specialty coffees,
and continues to be a leader in the sale of flavored coffees. Gloria Jean’s flavored coffees begin with top quality
Arabica coffee beans that are roasted and then coated with proprietary flavorings.

Product Selection. Most Gloria Jean's retail stores offer as many as 75 varieties of flavored coffees,
origins, blends, and decaf coffees, a wide variety of hot and cold beverages, light snack and dessert food items
and a selection of gift items and coffee related merchandise. The primary function of Gloria Jean’s marketing is
to entice consumers with eye-catching signage, window displays and promotions, A large selection of products
helps to attract both new and repeat customers.

Service. Friendly and efficient customer service is always critical in any retail setting, and is especially
important for those stores in a mall environment, where shoppers are often in a hurry and have many cheices.
Because of the opportunity for repeat customers, it is essential that customers receive excellent service.

Diedrich Coffee & Coffee People

The Company currently has no plans to open any additional company operated or franchised Diedrich
Coffee or Coffee People coffeehouses.

Growth Strategy

Wholesale Distribution Growth. In recent years, the primary growth in the coffee industry has come from
the specialty coffee category, driven by the wider availability of high quality coffee, the emergence of upscale
coffeehouses throughout the country and the general level of consumer knowledge and appreciation of specialty
coffee. Diedrich Coffee has benefited from the overall specialty coffee market trends and what we believe are
distinctive advantages over our competitors.

We are focused on building our three brands and profitability growing our wholesale business channels. We
believe that we can continue to grow sales by increasing market share in our existing business channels,

6




expanding into new geographic markets, expanding into new high-growth market segments and selectively
pursing other opportunities. Among others, this statement is forward looking and subject to the risks and
uncertainties outlined in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations.”

We have taken significant steps to expand and strengthen our wholesale sales organization over the past two
years, and we are actively seeking new distribution channels for our coffee products. We intend to pursue
continued growth within the Away from Home (AFH) single serve coffee market by expanding the number of
OCS distributors that carry our Keurig Premium Coffee Systems™ lines of coffees as well as our whole bean and
ground coffee product lines. We will aggressively expand our presence in the At Home (AH) single serve market
through building our brand awareness with specialty retailers. We will continue to add more local and chain
foodservice customers to the growing numbers restaurants, coffeehouses and hotels that are moving up to
specialty coffee to satisfy the demands of their guests for high quality coffee. We also offer our coffees on our
internet websites, and we believe that this channel of distribution has untapped long-term growth potential.

Retail Segment Growth. Under a non-compete provision in the Agreement with Starbucks, we are
restricted for a period of three years after the transaction closes in our ability to open any new company-operated
or franchised Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People coffeehouses in any city in which Diedrich Coffee or Coffee
People coffechouses operated on the date that we and Starbucks entered into the Agreement. The non-compete
provision does not restrict our ability to open retail Gloria Jean's stores and does not apply to wholesale sales o
retail businesses that are not operated by us or other non-retail businesses or the conversion of our stores existing
on the date of the Agreement to franchise stores. See “Recent Developments” above and “ltem 7 Overview—
Recent Developments”.

Opportunistic development of new Gloria Jean’s retail locations by us may be undertaken on a very
selective basis; however there are no current plans to open any company stores or franchise additional Diedrich
or Coffee People coffeehouses. Development of any new Gloria Jean’s retail units will be through new franchise
development. This will require increasing awareness among prospective franchisees and their lenders of the
opportunities, assisting potential franchisees in obtaining control of desirable locations in premiere
developments, increasing awareness of the Gloria Jean’s specialty coffee brand by real estate developers,
improving the cost effectiveness of architectural plans for new prototypes and leveraging purchasing efficiencies
system-wide for new unit equipment and fixtures packages.

Gloria Jean’s Franchise Growth. Since the acquisition of the Gloria Jean’s brand in 1999, we have made
a number of modifications to the Gloria Jean’s franchising business model to strengthen the Gloria Jean's
system. A new form of franchise agreement was adopted which incorporated many provisions commeon in other
successful franchise systems. Screening of financial qualifications of franchise candidates has been improved in
terms of consistency and accuracy. Franchisees are required to obtain their own master leases directly from
landlords, rather than subleasing their locations from Gloria Jean's. Franchisees are required to hire their own
architects and contractors to develop new Gloria Jean's locations to approved specifications. Our training
program has been completely redesigned in order to improve the quality of store level operations, product
quality, and the consistency of brand standards. Although we believe that these and other changes to the Gloria
Jean’s franchising model will ultimately result in a stronger Gloria Jean’s franchise system, they may result in
slower domestic franchise growth in the near term. .

Another factor we must overcome in the near term to resume domestic franchise unit growth for Gloria
Jean’s is a shortage of projects in our new unit development “pipeline,” or inventory of new franchise unit deals
in progress. This shortage resulted from our focus on improving the foundation for future franchise development
during the past several years, rather than aggressively opening new franchise retail units. Additionally, as part of
our efforts to strengthen our existing franchise retail base, it will be necessary to allow many of the weaker
performing locations to close.




Franchise Support Programs

We provide a variety of support services to our franchisees. These services include marketing, product
sourcing, volume purchasing savings, training and business consultation,

Our primary retail marketing strategy is to develop the Gloria Jean’s brand in the U.S. through penetration
of new and existing markets via franchise growth. Gloria Jean’s franchise marketing efforts are based upon the
belief that the proprietary roast recipes and the commitment to quality and freshness deliver a distinctive
advantage in all Gloria Jean’s coffee products. Gloria Jean’s franchisees use word-of-mouth, local store
marketing and the inviting atmosphere of their coffee stores to drive brand awareness and comparable store sales
growth., Gloria Jean's franchisees also conduct in-store coffee tastings, provide brewed coffee at local
neighborhood events, and donate coffee to local charities to increase brand awareness.

We have established an intensive training program for our franchisees, which includes training on in-store
operations, coffee knowledge, merchandising, buying, controls and accounting. Management works closely with
franchisee representatives on issues that affect the operations of stores. Franchisees are surveyed regularly to
provide feedback on subjects that affect the operations of their stores.

Product Supply and Roasting

Sourcing. We are committed to selling only the finest whole bean coffees and coffee beverages. Coffee
beans are an agricultural product grown in over 50 countries in tropical regions of the world. The supply and
price of coffee are subject to significant volatility and we depend upon our relationships with coffee producers,
outside trading companies and exporters for our supply of green coffee. Supply and price can be affected by
multiple factors in the producing countries, including weather, political and economic conditions. Although the
broader coffee market generally treats coffee as a fungible commodity, the specialty coffee industry focuses on
the highest grades of coffee. We purchase premium grade Arabica coffee beans that we believe to be the best
available from each producing region.

Roasting. We employ a roasting process that varies based upon the variety, quality, origin and physical
characteristics of the coffee beans being roasted. Our roast masters are responsible for the green coffee bean
roasting process. They are craftsmen who employ our proprietary roasting formulas while adjusting the formula
to take into account the specific attributes of each coffee bean being roasted. Each coffee bean contains aromatic
oils and flavor characteristics that develop from the soil, climate and environment where the bean is grown. The
skilled roast master determines and carefully controls the roasting conditions in an effort to maximize the flavor
potential of each batch of coffee. The roast master hears how the roast pops, smells the developing aroma and
identifies the right shades of color. He draws upon experience and knowledge to properly adjust airflow, time and
temperature while the roast is in progress in order to optimize each roast.

Freshness. Our coffee is delivered to our retail locations and wholesale customers promptly to guarantee
the freshness of each cup of coffee or package of whole coffee beans sold.

Competition

The specialty coffee market is intensely competitive and generally highly fragmented. The competitive
factors within the specialty coffee market include product quality, customer service, product differentiation and,
to a lesser extent, on price. Diedrich Coffee competes against all sellers of specialty coffee in multiple sales
channels including Starbucks, Green Mountain, Peet’s, Boyd Coffee and other competitors.

In our wholesale business, we expect increased competition, both within our primary geographic territory,
the Western United States, and in other regions of the United States, as we expand from our current markets. In
most markets in which we do retail business either through company or franchise locations, there are numerous
competitors in the specialty coffee beverage business, and we expect this situation to continue. Our whole bean
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coffee competes directly against specialty coffees sold at specialty retailers and a growing number of specialty
coffee stores. The specialty coffee market is expected to become even more competitive as regional companies
expand and attempt to build brand awareness in new markets. We compete primarily by providing high quality
coffee, easy access to our products and superior customer service, and we believe we differentiate ourselves from
many of our larger competitors, who specialize in one primary channel of distribution. We also believe that our
product offering is distinctive because we offer a wide array of coffees, including origins, blends and flavored
coffees. Finally, we believe that being an independent roaster allows us to be better focused and react quicker to
our wholesale customers’ needs as compared to than larger, multi-product competitors. While we believe we
currently compete favorably with respect to these factors, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
compete successfully in the future.

Foreign Operations

The international Gloria Jean's franchise operations were sold on February 11, 20035. In connection with that
sale, we agreed that we would not compete internationally with the purchaser using our Diedrich Coffee and
Coffee People brands for a period of two years. Since that date, we no longer have foreign operations.

Other Factors

The performance of individual coffechouses or mall coffee stores may also be affected by factors such as
traffic patterns and the type, number and proximity of competing coffechouses or mall coffee stores. In addition,
factors such as inflation, increased coffee bean, food, labor and employee benefit costs and the availability of
experienced management and hourly employees may also adversely affect the specialty coffee retail business in
general and our coffeehouses and mall coffee stores in particular.

Seasonality

Our business experiences some variations in sales from quarter to quarter due to the holiday season and
other factors including, but not limited to, general economic trends, competition, marketing programs and the
weather. The fall and winter months are generally the best sales months but our geographic and product line
diversity provide for some sales stability in the warmer months when coffee consumption ordinarily decreases.

Intellectual Property

We own several trademarks and service marks that have been registered with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office, including Diedrich Coffee®, Gloria Jean’s®, Coffee People®, Black Tiger®, Moming Edition
Blend®, Wiener Melange Blend®, Nepenthe Blend®, and Flor de Apanas®, as well as other slogans, product
names, design marks and logos. We also own registrations in numerous foreign countries for the protection of the
Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People trademark and service mark. These trademark registrations can generally be
renewed as long as we continue to use the marks protected by the registrations. The Gloria Jean’s, Coffee People
and Diedrich Coffee trademarks are material to our business.

On February i1, 2005, we sold Gloria Jean’s international franchise operations to Jireh International Pty.
Ltd., formerly the Gloria Jean’s master franchisee for Australia, and certain of its affiliates {(collectively, “Jireh™)
for $16,000,000 in cash and an additional $7,020,000 payable over the next six years under license, roasting and
consulting agreements. After all payments have been made to us under the license, roasting and consulting
agreements, all remaining Gloria Jean’s trademarks, including those in the U.S., will be transferred to Jireh.
Concurrent with such future transfer, our U.S.-based Gloria Jean’s subsidiary will enter into a perpetual, royalty-
free master franchise agreement with Jireh under which we will continue to have exclusive rights to operate,
franchise and develop Gloria Jean’s locations throughout the U.S. and Puerto Rico and to continue our wholesale
operations under the Gloria Jean’s Coffees brand in these same markets. We also own a number of common law
service marks and trademarks in the United States including “Gloria Jean's Coffee Bean.” We have also received
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trademark and service mark protection for the name Coffee People and related marks in Canada and Japan. We
own copyrights on our promotional materials, coffechouse graphics and operational and training materials. We
do not believe that any of these copyrights, valuable as they are, are material to our business.

Employees

At June 27, 2007, we employed 223 people, 153 of whom were employed full-time. None of our employees
are represented by a labor union, and no employees are currently covered by collective bargaining agreements.
We consider our relations with our employees to be good. We regularly review our employee benefits, training
and other aspects of employment to attract and to retain valuable employees and managers. Franchise employees
are not employees of the Company.

Government Regulation

In addition to the laws and regulations relating to the food service industry, we are subject to Federal Trade
Commission (“FTC”) regulation and state laws that regulate the offer and sale of franchises as well as the
franchise relationship, The FTC’s Trade Regulation Rule relating to Disclosure Requirements and Prohibitions
Concerning Franchising and Business Opportunity Ventures generally requires us to give prospective franchisees
a franchise offering circular containing information prescribed by the rule. A number of states have laws that
regulate the offer and sale of franchises and the franchisor-franchisee relationship. These laws generally require
registration of the franchise offering with state authorities before making offers or sales and regulate the
franchise relationship by, for example:

«  prohibiting interference with the right of free association among franchisees;
= prohibiting discrimination in fees and charges;

e regulating the termination of the relationship by requiring “good cause” to exist as a basis for the
termination, advance notice to the franchisee of the termination, and an opportunity to cure a default;

*  requiring repurchase of inventories in some circumstances;

= restricting non-renewal by the franchisor;

»  limiting restrictions on transfers or inheritance of the franchisee’s interests; and

»  regulating placement of competing units that might adversely affect the franchisee’s results.

Failure to comply with applicable franchise laws may adversely affect us. Any changes to the FTC’s rules,
or state franchise laws, or future court or administrative decisions, could affect our franchise business. There are
also extensive federal, state and local government regulations relating to the development and operation of food
service outlets, including laws and regulations relating to: building and seating requirements; the preparation and
sale of food; cleanliness; safety in the workplace; and accommodations for the disabled. Our relationship with
our employees is also subject to regulation, such as: minimum wage requirements; anti-discrimination laws;
overtime and working conditions; and citizenship requirements.

Available Information

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q) and Current Reports on Form 8-K, and
other documents that we may file with or furnish to the SEC from time to time are available on our Internet
website, free of charge, as soon as reasonably practicable after the reports are electronically filed with or
furnished to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. These reports are available at
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www.diedrich.com under the heading “Investor Services.” We intend to disclose future amendments to certain
provisions of our Code of Conduct, which is available on the www.diedrich.com website, within four business
days following the date of such amendment on our website.

Item 1A. Risk factors.
RISK FACTORS RELATING TO DIEDRICH COFFEE AND ITS BUSINESS

Historical losses from continuing operations may continue and, as a result, the price of our commen stock
may be negatively affected.

For the past five fiscal years, we had net loss from continuing operations of $3,749,000 for the fiscal year
ended June 27, 2007, $5,453,000 for the fiscal year ended June 28, 2006, $2,911,000 for the fiscal year ended
June 29, 2005, $1,611,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 and $1.183,000 for the fiscal year ended
July 2, 2003. We could continue to suffer losses in the future, which may negatively affect our stock price.

If we are not able to grow our business, the results of our operations and our financial condition may be
adversely impacted.

As of June 27, 2007, we had over 800 wholesale customers and operated 3 Diedrich Coffee retail locations,
which we managed on a day-to-day basis, and had eight franchised Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People

coffechouse locations. We also had 142 Gloria Jean’s retail locations, of which 136 were franchised. To grow,
we must:

» - expand Diedrich Coffee, Coffee People and Gloria Jean’s wholesale sales;
= attract single and multi-store franchisees for our Gloria Jean’s brand in the United States;
*  continue to upgrade Gloria Jean’s products and programs;

*  have our single and multi store franchisees obtain suitable sites at acceptable costs in highly
competitive real estate markets;

»  integrate newly franchised or corporate locations into existing product distribution;
»  continue to upgrade inventory contrel, marketing and information systems; and

=  impose and maintain strict quality control from green coffee acquisition to the fresh cup of brewed
coffee in a customer’s hand.

Implementation of our growth strategy may divert management’s attention from other aspects of our
business and place a strain on management, operational and financial resources, and accounting systems. Future
inability to grow our business resulting from, among other things, failing to execute any of the above factors may
adversely affect the results of our operations and our financial condition.

Qur franchisees could take actions that could harm our business.

Franchisees are independent contractors and are not our employees. We provide training and support to our
franchisees, and the terms of our franchise agreements require our franchisees to maintain certain minimum
operating standards; however, the quality of franchised operations may be diminished by any number of factors
beyond our control. For example, franchisees may not successfully operate coffeehouses in a manner consistent
with our standards and requirements, or may not hire and train qualified managers or other personnel. In other




instances, franchisees may operate their units in conformity with our operating standards and specifications, but
may fail to meet their financial obligations to us under a franchise agreement or a sublease for a location, or to
vendors, lenders or other creditors. While we have certain contractual remedies in such instances of default,
enforcing our remedies typically requires litigation, and therefore our image and reputation, and the image and
reputation of other franchisees, may suffer even if such litigation is successfully concluded. If a significant
number of franchisces were to be in default simultaneously, a larger number of franchise units could be
terminated in a given time period than we would be able to re-franchise, or absorb into our company operated
unit base, and system-wide sales could significantly decline. If this were to occur, we might also be unable to
meet our financial obligations to mall landlords for early termination of the 67 master leases for which we are
currently liable.

Our growth through single and multi-store franchisees may not occur as rapidly as we currently
anticipate.

Our ability to recruit, retain and contract with qualified franchisees has become, and will continue to be,
increasingly important to our operations as we expand. Our franchisees are dependent upon the availability of
adequate sources of financing on acceptable terms in order to meet their development obligations, and the credit
markets for such franchise financing have historically been somewhat volatile. Prospective franchise lenders
have historically been cautious in their approach to financing smaller or newer, less established retail brands
vis-2-vis larger and more established franchised systems. Such financing may not be available to our franchisees,
or only available upon disadvantageous terms. Our franchise development strategy may not enhance our results
of operations. Fatlure to execute on our strategy to grow through franchise store development would harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly, which could have a negative effect on the price of our
common stock.

From time to time, our operating results may fall below investor expectations. These results are likely to
fluctuate from quarter to quarter as a result of a number of factors, including the fluctuations in the price of green
coffee; competition from existing and new competitors; the number, timing and mix of franchise store openings
or closings; comparable franchisee same-store sales; and changes in consumer preferences.

Quarterly fluctuations in our operating results as the result of these factors or for any other reason could
cause our stock price to decline. Accordingly, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our historical or
future operating results are not necessarily meaningful, and such comparisons should not be relied upon for
future performance.

Because we have only one reasting facility, a significant interruption in the operation of this facility could
potentially disrupt our operations.

We have only one coffee roasting and distribution facility. A significant interruption in the operation of this
facility, whether as a result of a natural disaster or other causes, could significantly impair our ability to operate
our business on a day-to-day basis.

Future changes in minimum wage requirements could adversely affect our business, financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows,

A number of our employees are subject to minimum wage requirements. There can be no assurance that
further increases in minimum wage will not be implemented in jurisdictions in which we operate or seek to
operate. There can be no assurance that we will be able to pass additional increases in labor costs through to our
customers in the form of price adjustments and, accordingly, such minimum wage increases could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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Our franchisees may not be able to renew leases or control rent increases at retail locations.

All of our 9 company operated coffeehouses are presently on leased premises. While some Gloria Jean's
stores are leased by an indirect subsidiary of Coffee People, Inc., in most cases, the franchisees pay their rent
directly to their landlord. Upon the expiration of some of these leases, there is no automatic renewal or option to
renew. Consequently, these leases may not be renewed. If they are renewed, rents may increase substantially.
Either of these events could adversely affect us. Other leases are subject to renewal at fair market value, which
could involve substantial rent increases, or are subject to renewal with scheduled rent increases, which could
result in rents being above fair market value.

In addition, franchisees may not renew their franchises at the expiration of the coffeehouse lease term. On
average 12 franchise unit lease terms expire annually. Franchisees may choose not to renew their franchises,
which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our industry is highly competitive and we may not have the resources to compete effectively.

With low barriers to entry, competition in our industry is expected to increase from national and regional chains,
franchise operators and local specialty coffee stores. Our whole bean coffees compete directly against specialty
coffees sold at specialty retailers, variety and discount stores, and a growing number of specialty coffee stores. Many
specialty coffee companies, including Green Mountain Coffee Roasters, S&D Coffee, Boyd Coffee and Starbucks
sell whole bean coffees through these channels. In our sale of coffee beverages and espresso drinks, we compete
directly against all other specialty grade coffee roasters, coffechouses, espresso/coffee bars and mall coffee stores, as
well as against restaurant and beverage outlets that serve coffee, and a growing number of espresso stands, carts, and
stores. Qur competition at this level includes a growing number of specialty coffee retailers, including Starbucks,
Barmnie’s, Coffee Beanery Ltd., Caribou Coffee, Peet’s Coffee, Tully’s Coffee and many others, The attractiveness of
the gourmet specialty coffechouse market may draw additional competitors with substantially greater financial,
marketing and operating resources than we have. In addition, we compete to draw customers of standard or
commercial coffee, and consumers of substitute coffee products manufactured by a number of nationwide coffee
manufacturers, such as Kraft Foods, Proctor & Gamble and Nestlé, to specialty grade coffee.

Our supply costs may be higher than we expect because of fluctnations in availability and cost of
unroasted coffee.

Increases in the price of green coffee, or the unavatilability of adequate supplies of green coffee of the
quality we seek, whether due to the failure of our suppliers to perform, conditions in coffee-producing countries,
or otherwise, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. We depend upon both outside
brokers and our direct contacts with exporters and growers in countries of origin for our supply of green coffee.
Coffee supply and price are subject to significant volatility beyond our control. Although most coffee trades in
the commodity market, coffee of the quality we seek tends to trade on a negotiated basis at a substantial premium
above commodity coffee pricing, depending upon the origin, supply and demand at the time of purchase. Supply
and price can be affected by a number of factors in the producing countries, including weather, political and
economic conditions. In addition, green coffee prices have been affected in the past, and may be affected in the
future, by the actions of certain organizations and associations, such as the International Coffee Organization or
the Association of Coffee Producing Countries. These organizations have historically attempted to establish
commaodity price controls of green coffee through agreements that establish export quotas or by restricting coffee
supplies worldwide. These organizations, or others, may succeed in raising green coffee prices. Should this
happen, we may not be able to maintain our gross margins by raising prices without affecting demand.

Compliance with health, franchising and other government regulations applicable to us coutd have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our roasting facility and retail locations are subject to licensing and reporting requirements by a number of
governmental authorities, These governmental authorities include federal, state and local health, environmental,
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labor relations, sanitation, building, zoning, fire, safety and other departments that have jurisdiction over the
development and operation of our retail locations. Our aclivities are also subject to the Americans with
Disabilities Act and related regulations, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in public
accommodations and employment. Changes in any of these laws or regulations could have a materjal adverse
affect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. :

We are also subject to federal regulation and certain state laws that govern the offer and sale of franchises
and the franchisor-franchisce relationship. Many state franchise laws impose substantive requirements on
franchise agreements, including limitations on non-competition provisions and on provisions concerning the
termination or non-renewal of a franchise. Some states require companies to register certain materials before
franchises can be offered or sold in that state. The failure to obtain or retain licenses or registration approvals to
sell franchises could delay or preclude franchise sales and otherwise adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Additionally, any franchise law violations may give existing and future
franchisees a basis to bring claims against us. Franchise law violation claims could include unfair business
practices, negligent misrepresentation, fraud, or statutory franchise investment or relationship violations.
Remedies may include damages or rescission of the franchise agreement by the franchisee. These claims may
already exist and their assertion against us could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

The loss of key personnel or our inability to attract and retain qualified personnel could significantly
disrupt our business.

Our continued success largely will depend on the efforts and abilities of our executive officers and other key
employees. The loss of services of these individuals could disrupt operations. We do not have employment
agreements with any of our executive officers and any of our executive officers can terminate their employment
if he or she chooses to do so. In addition, our success and the success of our franchisees will depend upon our
and their ability to attract and retain highly motivated, well-qualified retail operators and other management
personnel, as well as a sufficient number of qualified employees. Qualified individuals needed to fill these
positions are in short supply in some geographic areas. Their inability to recruit and retain such individuals may
delay the planned openings of new retail and franchise locations which could have a material adverse effect on
our business or results of operations.

We could be subject to adverse publicity or claims from our customers.

We may be subject to complaints from or litigation by customers who allege beverage or food-related
illness, injuries suffered on the premises or other quality, health or operational concerns. Adverse publicity
resulting from such allegations may materially adversely affect us, regardless of whether such allegations are true
or whether we are ultimately held liable. We may also be the subject of complaints or allegations from current,
former or prospective employees from time-to-time. A lawsuit or claim could result in an adverse decision
against us that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in consumer preferences or discretionary spending could negatively affect our results.

We offer specialty coffee beans, brewed coffee beverages, espresso-based beverages, blended drinks and
light food items served in a casual setting. Our continued success depends, in part, upon the popularity of these
types of coffec-based beverages. Shifts in consumer preferences away from our coffee-based beverages could
materially adversely affect our future profitability. Also, our success depends {0 a significant extent on & number
of factors that affect discretionary consumer spending, including economic conditions, disposable consumer
income and consumer confidence. Adverse changes in these factors could affect sales, particularly at franchise
locations which could have an adverse affect on royalty income.
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Our lack of diversification may affect business if demand is reduced.

Our business is primarily centered on one product: fresh specialty grade coffee. To date, our operations have
been limited to primarily the purchase and roasting of green coffee beans and the sale of whole bean coffee,
coffee beverages and espresso drinks through our franchise coffee stores, coffeehouses, and wholesale coffee and
mail order businesses. Any decrease in demand for coffee would have a material adverse effect on our business,
operating results and financial condition.

Qur failure or inability to enforce our trademarks or trade names could adversely affect our efforts to
establish brand equity.

Our ability to successfully expand our business will depend in part on our ability to maintain “brand equity”
through the use of our trademarks, service marks, trade dress and other proprietary intellectual property,
including our name and logos. We currently hold a number of trademarks and service marks related to our
brands. Some or all of our rights related to our intellectual property may not be enforceable; even if registered,
against any prior users of similar intellectual property or our competitors who seek or intend to utilize similar
intellectual property in areas where we operate or intend to conduct operations. If we are unable to successfully
enforce our intellectual property rights, we may be unable to capitalize on our efforts to maintain brand equity. It
is possible that we will encounter claims from prior users of similar intellectual property in areas where we
operate or intend to conduct operations, including foreign countries. Claims from prior users could limit our
operations or cause us to pay damages or licensing fees to a prior user or registrant of similar intellectual

property.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable.

Item 2.  Properties.

Office Space and Plant

We currently lease approximately 17,620 square feet of office space in Irvine, California and approximately
6,192 square feet of warehouse space in Irvine, California. The lease for the office space will expire in January
2011 and the lease for the warchouse space will expire in December 2010. We also lease a 66,237 square foot
roasting facility located in Castroville, California. The term of the current lease expires in December 2015, and is
renewable, at our option, for a term of 15 additional years. We believe that our facilities are generally adequate
for our current needs, and that suitable additional production and administrative space will be available as needed
for the foreseeable future.

Company Operated Locations

As discussed under “Item 1 Recent Developments,” and “Item 7 Overview—Recent Developments,” we and
Starbucks Corporation entered into the Agreement pursuant to which Starbucks agreed to purchase our leasehold
interests in most of the 47 locations where we operate retail stores under the Diednch Coffee and Coffee People
brands. During fiscal 2007, we completed the transaction with a transfer of 32 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee
People retail stores to Starbucks Corporation.

Our strategic direction is currently focused on growing the wholesale business segment and the related
distribution channels, including franchise stores. We plan to narrow our focus of the retail business segment to
only franchise operations and to close the remaining Diedrich Coffee company-operated locations.

As of June 27, 2007, we were a party to leases for 9 company operated retail locations
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Franchised Stores

All of our Gloria Jean’s locations are operated on leased premises, 136 of which are franchised.
Approximately 49% of the leased premises presently occupied by Gloria Jean’s franchised outlets are leased by
us, and we have entered into sublease agreements with the franchisees on a cost pass-through basis. Gloria
Jean's, however, remains obligated under the lease in all such cases. As further discussed below under the
heading “Financial Condition and Liquidity and Capital Resources—Commitments and Contractual
Obligations,” our maximum theoretical future exposure under these leases at June 27, 2007, computed as the sum
of all remaining lease payments through the expiration dates of the respective leases, was $17,628,000. In the
future, new franchisees will generally be required to enter into master leases directly with the landlord. This will
also be the case when current leases are up for renewal. Gloria Jean’s stores are designed to accommodate
locations in various sizes, ranging from 170 square foot kiosk outlets (which sell principally coffee drinks and
other beverages) to 2,000 square foot full service stores.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings.

In the ordinary course of our business, we may become involved in legal proceedings from time to time.
Material pending legal proceedings to the business, to which we became or were a party during the current fiscal
year or subsequent thereto, but before the filing of this report, are summarized below:

On September 21, 2006, a purported class action complaint entitled Jason Reid; Kimberly Cornia, et al. v.
Diedrich Coffee., et al. was filed against the Company in United States District Court Central District of
California by two former employees, who worked in the positions of team member and shift manager. A second
similar purported class action complaint entitled Deborah Willems, et al. v. Diedrich Coffee., et al. was filed in
Orange County, California Superior Court on February 2, 2007, on behalf of another former employee who
worked in the position of general manager. These cases currently involve the issue of whether employees and
former employees who worked in California stores during specified time periods were deprived of overtime pay,
missed meal and rest breaks. In addition to unpaid overtime, these cases seek to recover waiting time penalties,
interest, attorneys’ fees and other types of relief on behalf of the current and former employees in the purported
class.

We intend to vigorously defend this litigation. Because the cases are in preliminary stages, we cannot yet
predict their outcome and potential financial impact on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.
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PARTII
Item 5. Market For Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.
Our common stock is reported on the Nasdag Global Market under the symbol “DDRX.” The following

table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices for our common stock as reported on the
Nasdaq Global Market.

Price Range
Period High Low
Fiscal Year Ended June 28, 2006
Twelve Weeks Ended September 21, 2005 $9.11 $4.78
Twelve Weeks Ended December 14, 2005 8.55 4.89
Twelve Weeks Ended March 8, 2006 5.20 4.00
Sixteen Weeks Ended June 28, 2006 4.95 3.11
Fiscal Year Ended June i7, 2007
Twelve Weeks Ended September 20, 2006 6.00 2.86
Twelve Weeks Ended December 13, 2006 4,29 3.25
Twelve Weeks Ended March 7, 2007 4.10 3.39
Sixteen Weeks Ended June 27, 2007 5.00 3.66

At September 14, 2007, there were 5,448,316 shares of our common stock outstanding and 658 stockholders
of record. We have not paid dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying dividends in the
foreseeable future.

The following graph shows a comparison of the cumulative total returns for the period beginning on July 3,
2002 and ending on June 27, 2007 for:

*  QOur common stock;
+  The Total Return Index for the Nasdaq Stock Market (U.S companies); and

e The Total Return Index for Nasdaq Retail Trade Stocks.
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Each of the below returns assumes an initial value of $100 and reinvestment of dividends. The comparisons
in the graph are required by the Securities and Exchange commission and are not intended to forecast or be
indicative of possible future performance of our common stock.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Diedrich Coflae, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The NASDAQ Retall Trade Index

$250 -

$200

$150 -

$100

$50
so 1 —_— J
71302 772103 6/30/04 6/29/05 6/26/06 62707
—+— Diedrich Coffee, Inc. — v — NASDAQ Composite « - -&- - - NASDAQ Retail Trade

" $100 invested on 7/3/02 in stock or on 6/30/02 in index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Indexes calculated on month-end basis.

. Investment Value
73402 7203 6/30/04 6/29/05 G/28/06 &2T107
DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. ............... $100.00 $113.89 $19643 $166.792 $111.07 $157.14
NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.S)) ......... $100.00 $108.54 $13990 § 140.79 $I151.46 $182.66
NASDAQ RETAIL TRADE STOCKS ....... $100.00 $122.93 $184.37 § 17440 $176.02 $201.74

Item 6.  Selected Financial Data.

Our fiscal year ends on the Wednesday closest to June 30. This reporting schedule generally results in three
12-week quarters and one 16-week quarter during the fourth fiscal quarter, for a total of 52 weeks. The following
selected financial data may not be indicative of our future results of operations and should be read in conjunction
with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our
consolidated financial statements and related notes.

On April 20, 2007, the Company and Starbucks Corporation completed the transaction with respect to the
transfer of 32 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People leaseholds and related assets. In separate transactions with
three parties other than Starbucks, we transferred seven retail store locations during the period January 2007 to
March 2007. In accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(“SFAS 144™), the financial statements for all periods have been reclassified to report the financial results for
those operations as discontinued operations.
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On February 11, 2005 we completed the sale of our Gloria Jean's international operations. In accordance
with SFAS No. 144, the financial statements for all periods have been reclassified to report the financial results
for those operations as discontinued operations.

The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
and related notes and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

Year ended Year ended Yearended Yearended Yearended
June 27, 2007 (A) June 28, 2006 (B) June 29, 2005 June 30, 2004 July 2, 2003

(in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenue:

Wholesale andother .. ............ $28,145 $21,244 $16,482 $14,861 $14,788
Franchiserevenuer .. .............. 3,514 3,775 4,166 4,407 4810
Retailsales .........covviinn.. 4,948 5,708 5,149 5,522 7,383

Total netrevenue ............. 36,607 30,727 25,797 24,790 26,981

Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales and related occupancy

COSES o\ vt ve e menreeee e naans 24,244 19,011 14,793 13,134 14,385
Operating expenses ............... 9,631 5,577 4,755 4,487 5,564
Depreciation and amortization ...... 1,059 1,177 1,110 1,072 872
General and administrative

EXPENSES © v oot t et e 6,661 11,491 9,770 8,523 8,264
Provision for asset impairment and

restructuring costs .............. 1,073 — —_ 4 (14)
Gain on asset disposals ............ 14 (58) (4) 2 (868)
Total costs and expenses ........... 42,682 37,198 30,424 27,218 28,203

Operating loss from continuing

Operations . .......c..oovevriiiiann (6,075) (6,471) 4,627 (2,428) (1,222)
Interest income (expense) and other, net . . . 206 458 90 (291) 227
L.oss from continuing operations before

income tax benefit .................. (5,869) (6,013) (4,537) 2,719) {1,449)
Incometax benefit .................... 2,120 560 1,626 1,108 266
Loss from continuing operations .. ....... $(3,749) $(5453) $(2911) $(1,611) $(1,183)

Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued

operations, net of income tax . . . . .. (1,596) (2,343) 1,739 1,862 (175)
Gain on sale of discontinued
operations, net of income tax .. . ... 3,580 — 15,795 — —_
Netincome (loss} .. ..... ... ...t $(1,765) $(7.796) $14,623 $ 251 $(1,358)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per
share (A) (B):
Loss from continuing operations . . . .. $ (0.70) $ (1.03) $ (056) § (031) $ (023)
Income from discontinued operations,
1= S U $ 037 $ (0.44) $ 336 $ 036 3 (0.03)
Netincome (10S8) .. .......ovvvnnn. 3 (0.33) $ (147N $ 280 % 005 $ (026)
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital .................. $ 8,592 $ 9,867 $11,203 $ 641 5 1,207
Total aS5€1S ... vvuvrvreenrnnnnn 33,333 34,130 40,313 25,218 26,101

Long-term debt and obligations under

capital leases, less current

POMON .. .vviiiii — — 328 1,173 2,033
Total stockholders’ equity .......... 23,152 24,267 31,522 16,475 16,202
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(A} Includes compensation expense of $284,000 due to the adoption of SFAS 123R.
(B) Includes compensation expense of $403,000 due to the adoption of SFAS 123R.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
INTRODUCTION

Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is provided as a
supplement to the accompanying consolidated financial statements and footnotes to help provide an
understanding of our financial condition, the changes in our financial condition and the resulis of operations. Qur
discussion is organized as follows:

¢ Overview. This section provides a general description of our business, as well as recent significant
transactions that we believe are important in understanding the resulis of operations, as well as to
anticipate future trends in those operations.

*  Results of operations. This section provides an analysis of our results of operations presented in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations by comparing the results for fiscal 2007 to fiscal
2006 and comparing the results for fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2005.

*  Financial condition and liquidity and capital resources. This section provides an analysis of our cash
flows, as well as a discussion of our outstanding debt and commitments, both firm and contingent, that
existed as of June 27, 2007. Included in the discussion of outstanding debt is a discussion of the
amount of financial capacity available to fund our future commitments, as well as a discussion of other
financing arrangements,

*  Critical accounting estimates. This section discusses those accounting policies that both are
considered important to our financial condition and results, and require significant judgment and
estimates on the part of management in their application. In addition, all of our significant accounting
policies, including the critical accounting policies, are summarized in Note | to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

*  New accounting pronouncements. This section discusses new accounting pronouncements, dates of
implementation and impact on our accompanying consolidated financial statements, if any.

OVERVIEW
Recent Developments

On September 14, 2006, we and Starbucks Corporation entered into an asset purchase agreement pursuant to
which Starbucks has agreed to purchase our leaschold interests in most of the 47 locations where we operate
retail stores under the Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People brands, along with certain related fixtures and
equipment, improvements, prepaid items, and ground lease improvements, and to assume certain liabilities as set
forth in the asset purchase agreement.

Between January 2007 and April 2007, the Company transferred a total of 32 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee
People leaseholds and related assets to Starbucks. We received a total cash consideration of $12,162,000 and an
additional amount of $1,247,000 was deposited into an escrow account. We received the full amount from the
escrow account in July 2007.

Business

We are a specialty coffee roaster, wholesaler and retailer. Our brands include Diedrich Coffee, Gloria
Jean’s, and Coffee People. The majority of our revenue is generated from wholesale customers located across the
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United States. Our wholesale operation sells 2 wide variety of whole bean and ground coffee as well in as single
serve coffee products through a network of office coffee service (“OCS”) distributors, chain and independent
restaurants, coffeehouses, other hospitality operators and specialty retailers. We operate a large coffee roasting
facility in Castroville, California that supplies freshly roasted coffee to our all of our wholesale and retail
customers.

We also sell brewed, espresso-based and various blended beverages primarily made from our own fresh
roasted premium coffee beans, as well as light food items, whole bean coffee and accessories, through our
company operated and franchised retail locations. The critical components for each of our retail locations include
high quality, fresh roasted coffee and superior customer service by knowledgeable employees. As of June 27,
2007, we owned and operated 9 retail locations and franchised 144 other retail locations under these brands, for a
total of 153 retail coffee outlets. Although the retail specialty coffee industry is presently dominated by a single
company, which operates over eight thousand domestic retail locations, we are one of the nation’s largest
specialty coffee retailers with annual system-wide revenues in excess of $59 million. System-wide revenues
include sales from company operated and franchise locations. Our retail units are located in 30 states.

Cost of sales for the Company consists of raw materials including green coffee beans, flavorings and
packaging materials; a portion of our lease expense; the salaries and related expenses of production and
distribution personnel; depreciation on production equipment; and freight and delivery expenses. Operating
expenses included the salaries and related expenses for those employees directly supporting our wholesale
distribution channels as well as those directly supporting franchise operations and development. In addition to
salaries and associated costs, these expenses include some marketing expenses and a portion of our lease
expense. General and administrative expenses consist of expenses incurred for corporate support and
administration, including a portion of our lease expense and the salaries and related expenses for personnel not
elsewhere categorized.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth the percentage relationship to total revenue of certain items included in our
statements of income for the years indicated:

Year Ended  Year Ended Year Ended
June 27,2007 June 28, 2006 June 29, 2005

Net revenue:

Wholesaleandothers ....... ... .. ... .. .. .... 76.9% 69.1% 63.9%
Franchiserevenue .. ....... ... ... ... ....... ..., 9.6 12.3 16.1
Retailsales ............ ... . .., (135 _lﬂ 200
Total tevenue . .............. .. ciiiiiaaii,,, 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales and related occupancy costs ............ 66.2% 61.9% 573%
Operating €Xpenses . . .. ..........oiienirin . 263 18.2 18.4
Depreciation and amortization ..................... 29 3.8 4.3
General and administrative expenses ................ 18.2 374 379
Provision for asset impairment and restructuring costs .. 3.0 — —
Gainonassetdisposals . ............. ... .. ... ... — (0.2) —_
Total costs and expenses . . ............c..vn.n. 116.6% 121.1% 117.9%
Operating loss from continuing operations ............... (16.6)% 2L.1)% (17.9Y%
Interest income and other,met ........... .. ... .. ..., ... 0.6 1.5 0.3
Loss from continuing operations before income tax
PIOVISION . ..ot e e e (16.0) (19.6) (17.6)
Income tax bepefit . ........ .. ... .. ... .. ... . .. ..., 58 1.8 6.4
Loss from continuing operations ....................... (10.2)% (17.8)% (11.2)%

Discontinued operations:
Income (loss} from discontinued operations, net of income

1€ (4.4)% (7.6)% 6.7%
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income tax . .. 9.3 — 61.2
Netincome (1058) .. .....couiiiiiinnemiena.. (4.8)% (25.4)% 56.7%

Sale of Retail Operations

Owr strategic direction is currently focused on growing the wholesale business segment and the related
distribution channeis, including franchise stores. As part of the plan to narrow the focus of the refail business
segment to only franchise operations, our plans are to close all Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People company-
operated locations, but retain the two brands for our wholesale and franchise operations. In conjunction with the
transaction with Starbucks Corporation, we have sold or closed a substantial majority of Diedrich Coffee and
Coffee People company-operated locations, Except for the three Diedrich Coffee stores that we currently operate,
our results of company-operated Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People retail operations are reported as
discentinued operations for all periods presented. The financial results of company-operated Gloria Jean’s retail
operations are reported as continuing operations for all periods presented.

As previously reported, on September 14, 2006, we and Starbucks Corporation entered into an asset
purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which Starbucks agreed to purchase our leasehold interests in
up to 40 of the 47 locations where we operale retail stores under the Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People brands
(the “Company Stores”), along with certain related fixtures and equipment, improvements, prepaid items, and
ground lease improvements, and to assume certain liabilities as set forth in the Agreement. On December 12,
2006, our stockholders approved the Agreement at the annual stockholder meeting.
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Pursuant to the Agreement, the actual amount paid by Starbucks was dependent on which and how many of
the Company Stores would ultimately be transferred to Starbucks. Ten percent of the amount paid to the
Company upon transfer of the Company Stores was required to be deposited into an escrow fund to be held in
connection with the Company’s indemnification obligations,

As part of the Agreement, we have agreed to a non-compete provision that for three years after the closing
of the transaction, restricts our ability to operate or have any interest in the ownership or operation of any entity
operating any retail specialty coffee stores in any city where a Company Store was located at the time that the
Agreement was executed. The non-compele provision applies only to stores opened after the date of the
Agreement and does not apply to (1) any retail stores operated under the “Gloria Jean’s” brand name,
(2) wholesale sales to retail businesses that are not operated by the Company, or other non-retail businesses, or
(3) the conversion of Company-operated stores existing on the date of the Agreement to franchise stores. We
have also agreed that we will not solicit any Starbucks employee to enter employment with us for three years
after the closing of the transaction.

The closing for the transfer of the initial group of Company Stores occurred on January 16, 2007, which
related to the transfer of 15 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People leaseholds and related assets to Starbucks in
exchange for a cash payment of approximately $5,560,000 and the deposit of approximately $618,000 into the
escrow fund. In connection with the closing for a second group of Company stores, which occurred on
February 2, 2007, we transferred an additional 13 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People leaseholds and related
assets to Starbucks and agreed to retain three Company stores that were the subject of the Agreement in exchange
for a cash payment of approximately $5,565,000 and the deposit of approximately $514,000 into the escrow
fund. In connection with the third closing, which occurred on February 9, 2007, we transferred one additional
Diedrich Coffee store’s leasehold and related assets to Starbucks in exchange for a cash payment of
approximately $63,000 and the deposit of approximately $7,000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the
fourth closing, which occurred on February 28, 2007, we transferred one additional Diedrich Coffee store’s
leasehold and related assets to Starbucks in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $586,000 to the
Company and the deposit of approximately $63,000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the fifth closing,
which occurred on March 23, 2007, we transferred one additional Diedrich Coffee store’s leasehold and related
assets to Starbucks in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $220,000 and the deposit of approximately
$25,000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the sixth closing, which occurred on April 20, 2007, we closed
our last transfer under the Agreement with Starbucks with the transfer of one Diedrich Coffee store’s leasehold
and related assets in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $168,000 and the deposit of approximately
$18,000 into the escrow fund. As of June 27, 2007, we had approximately $1,247,000 held in escrow which was
subsequently paid to us on July 19, 2007.

In separate transactions with three parties other than Starbucks, we transferred three retall store location
leaseholds and related assets on January 31, 2007, transferred certain assets (excluding leaseholds) relating to
two retail store location on February 5, 2007 and transferred certain assets (excluding its leasehold) relating to
two retail store locations on March 9, 2007, and received proceeds from these transactions of $620,000 and
$10,000, and $25,000, respectively.

Sale of International Franchise Operations

On Febroary 11, 2005, we completed the sale of our Gloria Jean’s international franchise operations to Jireh
International Pty. Lid., formerly the Gloria Jean's master franchisee for Australia, and certain of its affiliates
(collectively, “Jireh™) for $16,000,000 in cash and an additional $7,020,000 payable over the next six years under
license, roasting and consulting agreements. The sale resulted in a gain on the disposal of discontinued operations
of $15,795,000, net of $3,139,000 in taxes. The tax expense associated with the discontinued operations differed
from the statutory federal effective tax rate primarily due to changes in the valuation allowance and permanently
nondeductible goodwill associated with the discontinued operations.
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The sale included immediate transfer of franchise rights to Jireh of 338 Gloria Jean’s retail locations outside
the U.S. and Puerto Rico, including 242 in Australia. After all payments have been made to us under the license,
roasting and consulting agreements, all remaining Gloria Jean’s trademarks, including those in the U.S., will be
transferred to Jireh. Concurrent with such future transfer, our U.S.-based Gloria Jean’s subsidiary will enter into
a perpetual, royalty-free master franchise agreement with Jireh under which we will continue to have exclusive
rights to operate, franchise and develop Gloria Jean’s locations throughout the U.S. and Puerto Rico and to
continue our wholesale operations under the Gloria Jean's Coffees brand in these same markets.

We agreed to not compete internationally through our Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People brands for a
period of two years from the date of sale. Other than that restriction, our domestic Gloria Jean's outlets, our
Castroville roasting operations, our wholesale operations and our company operated Diedrich Coffee and Coffee
People retail outlets were not significantly affected by this transaction.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the financial results of Gloria Jean's international franchise operations
are reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Results of Operations
Year Ended June 27, 2007 Compared To Year Ended June 28, 2006

Total Revenue. Our revenue from continuing operations for the year ended June 27, 2007 increased by
$5,880,000, to $36,607,000 from $30,727,000 for the year ended June 28, 2006. This result was the net effect of
a 32.5% increase in wholesale revenue, a 13.3% decrease in retail sales, and a 6.9% decrease in domestic
franchise revenue. Each component of total revenue is discussed below.

Wholesale Revenue Our wholesale sales for the year ended June 27, 2007 increased by $6,901,000, or
32.5%, to $28,145,000 from $21,244,000 for the year ended June 28, 2006. This increase was primarily the net
result of the following factors:

Keurig “K-cup” and other Third Party Wholesale sales. Third party wholesale sales increased $7,063,000,
or 45.5% to $22,577,000 led by strong growth in the Keurig “K-cup” sales which increased by 49.7% from the
prior year.

Rouasted coffee sales to franchisees. Sales of roasted coffee to our franchisees decreased $162,000 for the
year ended June 27, 2007 primarily because of a net decrease of 4.0% same store sales in fiscal 2007 for the
Gloria Jean’s domestic system which reduced roasted coffee usage.

Franchise Revenue. Our domestic franchise revenue decreased by $261,000, or 6.9%, to $3,514,000 for
the year ended June 27, 2007 from $3,775,000 for the year ended June 28, 2006. Our franchise revenue consists
of initial franchise fees, franchise renewal fees, area development fees and royalties received on sales at
franchised locations. Of the decrease in domestic franchise revenue, $106,000 of the decrease resutted from a
decrease in royalty income and was due to a net decrease in same stores sales of 4.0% for the Gloria Jean’s brand
in the current year compared to fiscal 2006. The balance of the decrease of $155,000 was due to fewer new
franchise store openings and renewal fees compared to prior year.

Reiail Sales. Our retail sales revenue for the year ended June 27, 2007 decreased by a net $760,000, or
13.3%, to $4,948,000 from $5,708,000 for the year ended June 28, 2006. This decrease was primarily due to a
company-operated same store sales decrease of 1.5% or $1,075,000 as compared to the prior year along with a
reduction of 5 company stores during the past two fiscal years and was offset by an increase in our retail internet
website sales by $265,000 from $891,000 in fiscal 2006 to $1,156,000 in fiscal 2007.
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Cost of Sales and Related Occupancy Costs. As a percentage of total revenue, cost of sales increased
from 61.9% in fiscal 2006 to 66.2% in fiscal 2007. Because none of these costs relate to franchise revenue, the
most relevant benchmark of these costs is their relationship to total retail and wholesale sales. Using that
measure, cost of sales and related occupancy costs increased as a percentage of total retail and wholesale sales
from 70.5% in fiscal 2006 to 73.3% in fiscal 2007. Retail cost of sales decrcased from 37.4% to 36.2% in the
current year whereas wholesale cost of sales increased from 74.6% to 75.7% of wholesale sales in fiscal 2007
due to a higher percentage of higher cost Keurig business in the current year. Wholesale sales that carry a higher
cost of goods sold than retail sales, also increased as a percentage of the retail and wholesale sales mix from
78.8% to 85.0%.

Operating Expenses. Total operating expenses for the year ended June 27, 2007, increased $4,054,000
and as a percentage of total revenue, increased from 18.2% in fiscal 2006 to 26.3% in the current year. This
increase primarily resulted from $3,086,000 of costs associated with the realignment of certain functions of the
franchise segment to include costs associated with salaries and related general and administrative functions
previously reflected in general and administrative expenses in the prior year. Operating costs for wholesale
increased $1,256,000 and was primarily related to the increase in compensation costs as a result of increased
headcount and wholesale sales growth. Operating costs for retail decreased $288,000 or 12.1% of which
$398,000 related to our retail stores primarily from labor and related costs and was offset by an increase of
$110,000 from our retail internet website sales primarily due to labor as a result of the continued growth sales
growth over prior year.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization decreased $118,000, or 10.0% to
$1,059,000 for the year ended June 27, 2007 from $1,177,000 for the year ended June 28, 2006 and was
primarily the result of the decrease in Gloria Jean's retail stores since the beginning of the previous fiscal year,
along with impairment adjustments to the remaining three Diedrich Coffce retail stores during the current fiscal
year.

General and Administrative Expenses. Our general and administrative expenses decreased by
$4,830,000, or 42.0%, to $6,661,000 for the year ended June 27, 2007 compared to $11,491,000 for the year
ended June 28, 2006. As a percentage of total revenue, general and administrative expenses decreased from
37.4% for the fiscal 2006 to 18.2% for fiscal 2007 due primarily to $3,909,000 in salaries and related franchise
direct overhead costs that are included in operating expenses in the current year as a result of the realignment of
certain functions. These expenses were included as general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2006. The
remaining decrease of $921,000 resulted from $321,000 in salaries, consulting and related costs. We also had a
decrease of $119,000 in compensation expense related to the adoption of SFAS 23R and legal fees decreased by
$481.,000.

Interest Expense and Interest and Other Income, Net. Interest and other income, net less Interest
Expense totaled $206,000 for the year ended June 27, 2007 while Interest and other income, net less Interest
Expense totaled $458,000 for the year ended June 28, 2006. This change of $252,000 was due to an increase in
borrowings on our credit facility during the current fiscal year along with a decrease in interest income.

Income Tax Benefit. We had losses from continuing operations for the years ended June 27, 2007 and
June 28, 2006. In accordance with SFAS No., 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS 109"), the income tax
benefit generated by the loss from continuing operations were $2,120,000 and $560,000 for the years ended
June 27, 2007 and June 28, 20086, respectively. As of June 27, 2007 net operating loss carryforwards of
$7,974,000 and $7,644,000 for federal and state income tax purposes, respectively are available to be utilized
against future taxable income for years through fiscal 2026, subject to annual limitation pertaining to change in
ownership rules under the Internal Revenue Code. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and
projections of future taxable income over the periods which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management
believes it is more likely than not that the Company will not realize the benefits of these deductibie differences,
and thus has recorded a valuation allowance against the entire deferred tax asset balance.
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Results of Discontinued Operations—Retail As a result of the sale and closure of certain retail stores
during the current fiscal year, the results from this component of our business are presented as discontinued
operations for the fiscal years ended June 27, 2006 and June 28, 2006 in accordance with SFAS 144. For the year
ended June 27, 2007 net income from discontinued operations was $1,984,000, net of 32,125,000 in taxes,
including a gain of $3,580,000, net of $3,835,000 in taxes. For the year ended June 28, 2006 net loss from
discontinued retail operations was $2,343,000, net of a tax benefit of $241,000, The tax expense associated with
the discontinued retail operations differed from the statutory federal effective tax rate primarily due to changes in
the valuation allowance and permanently nondeductible goodwill associated with the discontinued operations.

Year Ended June 28, 2006 Compared To Year Ended June 29, 2005

Total Revenue. Our revenue from continuing operations for the year ended June 28, 2006 increased by
$4.,930,000, to $30,727,000 from $25,797,000 for the year ended June 29, 2005. This result was primarily due to
the net effect of a 28.9% increase in wholesale sales, an increase of 10.9% in retail sales, offset by a 9.4%
decrease in domestic franchise revenue. Each component of total revenue is discussed below.

Wholesale Revenue. Qur wholesale sales for the year ended June 28, 2006 increased by $4,762,000, or
28.9%, to $21,244,000 from $16,482,000 for the year ended June 29, 2005. This increase was primarily the net
result of the following factors:

Keurig “K-cup” and other Third Party Wholesale sales. Third party wholesale sales increased $4,890,000,
or 46.0% to $15,514,000 led by strong growth in the Keurig “K-cup” sales which increased by 55.3%.

Roasted coffee sales to franchisees. Sales of roasted coffee to our franchisees decreased $128,000 for the
year ended June 28, 2006 primarily because of a net decrease of 2.1% same store sales in fiscal 2006 for the
Gloria Jean’s domestic system which reduced roasted coffee usage.

Franchise Revenue. Our domestic franchise revenue decreased by $391,000, or 9.4%, to $3,775,000 for
the year ended June 28, 2006 from $4,166,000 for the year ended June 29, 2005. Qur franchise revenue consists
of initial franchise fees, franchise renewal fees, area development fees and royalties received on sales at
franchised locations. Of the decrease in domestic franchise revenue, $341,000 resulted from a reclassification of
certain fees as a reduction of general and administrative marketing expenses. The balance of the decrease in
franchise revenue of $50,000 resulted primarily from a 2.1% negative same stores sales for the Gloria Jean's
brand in the current year compared to fiscal 2005.

Retail Sales. Our retail sales revenue for the year ended June 28, 2006 increased by $559,000, or 10.9%, to
$5,708.000 from $5,149,000 for the year ended June 29, 2005. This increase was primarily due to a company-
operated same store sales increase of 2.5%, or $43,000 for Gloria Jeans and an increase in same store sales of
4.6%, or $108,000 for our Diedrich coffeehouses. Other non-comparative stores sales increased by $113,000 and
resulted from the closure or transfer of less profitable stores during fiscal 2006. Retail sales from our internet
website increased by $295,000 to $891,000 for the current year from $596,000 during fiscal 2005.

Cost of Sales and Related Occupancy Costs.  As 2 percentage of total revenue, these costs increased from
57.3% in fiscal 2005 to 61.9% in fiscal 2006. Because none of these costs relate to franchise revenue, the most
relevant benchmark of these costs is their relationship to totai retail and wholesale sales. Using that measure, cost
of sales and related occupancy costs increased as a percentage of total retail and wholesale sales from 68.4% in
fiscal 2005 to 70.5% in fiscal 2006. Retail cost of sales remained relatively the same from 38.1% to 37.4% in the
current year whereas wholesale cost of sales increased from 72.2% to 74.6% of wholesale sales in fiscal 2006
due to a higher percentage of higher cost Keurig business in the current year. Wholesale sales that carry a higher
cost of goods sold than retail sales, also increased as a percentage of the retail and wholesale sales mix from
76.2% to 78.8%.

Operating Expenses. Total operating expenses for the year ended June 28, 2006, increased $822,000 and
as a percentage of total revenue, decreased from 18.4% in fiscal 2005 to 18.2% in fiscal 2006. Operating
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expenses as compared to the prior fiscal year for the year ended June 28, 2006, as a percentage of retail and
wholesale sales, decreased slightly, from 22.0% of retail and wholesale sales in fiscal 2005 t0 20.7% in fiscal
2006. Operating costs for wholesale increased $386,000 for fiscal 2006 and was primarily related to the increase
in compensation costs as a result wholesale sales growth, Retail operating expenses increased by $165,000
compared to fiscal 2005 but decreased as a percent to retail sales from 48.7% in fiscal 2005 to 46.8% in fiscal
2006 and was primarily due to a decrease in labor and supervision costs from stores that closed during the 2006
fiscal year. Franchise operating expenses increased $271,000 in fiscal 2006 as a result of an increase in our
reserves for franchise rent and related receivables,

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased $67,000, or 6.0% to $1,177,000
for the year ended June 28, 2006 from $1,110,000 for the year ended June 29, 2005 and resulted from an increase
in capital improvements in the current year and toward the second half of the previous fiscal year.

General and Administrative Expenses. Our general and administrative expense increased by $1,721,000,
or 17.6%, to $11,491,000 for the year ended June 28, 2006. This increase resulted from $1,370,000 of salaries,
consulting, and related costs, including $615,000 of salaries resulting from the departures of two former
executive officers and the realignment of those respective departments, as well as $298,000 of increase in
salaries, consulting and other primarily related to the company’s review of its purchasing and distribution
process. In addition, the Company incurred $189,000 in salaries associated with store supervision, training, and
real cstate and construction, primarily in an effort to grow our Gloria Jean’s brand through company and
franchise operations. The company also incurred $268,000 in salaries and consulting fees primarily related to
strategic planning projects and the restatement of the Company’s prior year financial statements, all of which was
offset by a decrease of $415,000 primarily resulting from the elimination of the current year corporate bonus
accruals. We also incurred an increase of $356,000 of compensation expense for the current year due to the
adoption of SFAS 123R “Share Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), in the first quarter of the fiscal 2006 along
with a net $581,000 increase in legal fees. In addition, the Company incurred an increase of $210,000 of
additional workers compensation charges from an increase in expected losses, outside services increased by
$122,000 primarily from audit and tax fees expensed in the current fiscal year, but which were related to the 2005
fiscal year end audit and tax returns, and other costs of $77,000 net primarily associated with an increase in credit
card processing fees. These increases were offset by, $141,000 savings in travel due to timing of the Gloria
Jean's annual conference and a reduction in overall advertising spending of $439,000 resulting from a change in
the classification for coordination fees previously reflected in franchise income. As a percentage of revenue,
general and administrative expenses decreased to 37.4% for the year ended June 28, 2006 from 37.9% for the
year ended June 29, 2005.

Interest Expense and Interest and Other Income, Net. Interest and other income, net less Interest
Expense totaled $458,000 for the year ended June 28, 2006 while Interest and other income, net less Interest
Expense totaled $90,000 for the year ended June 29, 2005. The increase of $368,000 was primarily due to
interest income on the notes receivables from the sale of our international Gloria Jean’s franchise operations.

Income Tax Benefit. We had losses from continuing operations for the years ended June 28, 2006 and
June 29, 2005. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, the income tax benefit generated by the loss from continuing
operations were $560,000 and $1,626,000 for the years ended June 28, 2006 and June 29, 2005, respectively. As
of June 28, 2000, net operating loss carryforwards of $8,721,000 and $7,883,000 for federal and state income tax
purposes, respectively are available to be utilized against future taxable income for years through fiscal 2026,
subject to annual limitation pertaining to change in ownership rules under the Internal Revenue Code. Based
upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future 1axable income over the periods which the
deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will not
realize the benefits of these deductible differences, and thus has recorded a valuation allowance against the entire
deferred tax asset balance.

Results of Discontinued Operations—Retail As a result of the sale and closure of certain retail stores
which was completed on April 20, 2007, the results from these activities are presented as discontinued operations
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for the fiscal years ended June 28, 2006 and June 29, 2005 in accordance with SFAS 144. In the year ended
June 28, 2006 net loss from discontinued retail operations was $2,343,000, net of a tax benefit of $241,000. In
the year ended June 29, 2005 net loss from discontinued retail operations was $404,000, net of a tax benefit of
$225,000.

Results of Discontinued Operations—International Franchise As a result of the sale of the international
Gloria Jean's franchise operations on February 11, 2005 the results from this component of our business are
presented as discontinued operations for the fiscal year ended June 29, 2005 in accordance with SFAS 144, In the
year ended June 29, 2005 net income from discontinued international franchise operations was $17,938,000, net
of $3,457,000 in taxes, including a gain of $15,795,000, net of $3,139,000 in taxes. The tax expense associated
with the discontinued international franchise operations differed from the statutory federal effective tax rate
primarily due to changes in the valuation allowance and permanently nondeductible goodwill associated with the
discontinued operations.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Current Financial Condition

At June 27, 2007, we had working capital of $8,592,000, deferred rent and deferred compensation of
$684,000 and $23,152,000 of stockholders’ equity, compared to working capital of $9,867,000, total deferred
rent and deferred compensation of $670,000 and $24,267,000 of stockholders™ equity at June 28, 2006. The
decrease in working capital of $1,275,000 in the current fiscal year resulted primarily from current year losses
from continuing operations of $3,749,000. Available credit under our credit agreements was $5,000,000 as of
June 27, 2007 and June 28, 2006.

Cash Flows

The following is a summary of our cash flows for the three years ended June 27, 2007:

Fiscal Years Ended
June 27, 2007 June 28, 2006 June 29, 2005

Cash flows used in operating activities:

Netincome (Joss) . ......coviniiiiinnnnnn.. $(1,765,0000 $(7,796,000) $§ 14,623,000
(Income) loss from discontinued operations,
17 1,596,000 2,343,000 (1,739,000)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations,
11 (3,580,000) —_ {15,795,000)
Net loss from continuing operations .......... (3,749,000) (5,453,000) (2,911,000)
Net non-cash charges toincome ............. 1,039,000 1,823,000 (129,000)
Net increase in operating assets .............. (2,593,000) (917,000) (2,202,000)
Net increase (decrease) in operating liabilities . . 1,076,000 (86,000) 1,703,000
Cash flows used in continuing operating activities . . . (4,227,000) (4,633,000) (3,539,000)
Cash flows provided by (used in) discontinued
OPEraliONS . ... iun et ie e i ia e (2,611,000) (74,000) 632,000
Cash flows used in investing activities of continuing
OPerations - ... ...ovtinneine i iannaneenss (1,265,000) (736,000) (1,428,000)
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities
of discontinuing operations ................... 12,104,000 (2,510,000) 13,781,000
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities
of continuing operations ...................,, 290,000 71,000 (746,000)
Cash flows used in financing activities of
discontinuing operations . .................... (11,000) {18,000} (6,000)
Net increase (decrease) incash .................. 4,280,000 (7,900,000) 8,694,000
Cash atbeginningofyear ...................... 2,593,000 10,493,000 1,799,000
Cashatendofyear............................ $ 6,873,000 § 2,593,000 $ 10,493,000
Capital commitments atend of year .............. $ 4,478,000 $ 2,018,000 3 2,065,000

The changes in cash from continuing operations in fiscal year 2007 as compared to fiscal years 2006 and
2005 is more fully enumerated in the consolidated statements of cash flows in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

The Company has incurred losses from continuing operations of $3,749,000, $5,453,000 and $2,911,000 for
the 2007, 2006 and 2005 fiscal years, respectively. Net cash used in continuing operations of $4,227,000 for
fiscal 2007 resulted primarily from an increase in accounts receivable and inventories, offset by increases in
accounts payable and accrued expenses, all of which were primarily attributable to the increased working capital
needs due te a 32.5% increase in revenue from our wholesale business compared to fiscal 2006. Since the terms
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of our wholesale sales are credit, an increase in wholesale sales results in an increase in accounts receivable.
Increase in our wholesale business also requires us to carry higher inventory to meet market demand. In the
future we expect 1o see increases in working capital requirements as we continue to move away from the retail
business which is cash based and move toward increasing our wholesale operations. For fiscal 2006, cash used in
continuing operations was $4,558,000 and was primarily the result of an increase in accounts receivable and
inventories, offset by increases in accounts payable as our wholesale business grew by 28.9% over fiscal 2005.

Cash flow used in discontinued operations in 2007 and 2006 of $2,611,000 and $74,000 respectively, were
primarily the result of losses in our retail operations before the sale and closure of retail stores in fiscal year

2007.

Cash flows provided by investing activities of discontinued operations for 2007 and 2005 of $12,104,000
and $13,781,000 respectively, were primarily the result of the sale of Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People retails
stores to Starbucks and other third parties in 2007 for net proceeds of $12,121,000 and the sale of international
operations in 2005 for $16,000,000. Cash flows used in investing activities of discontinued operations for 2006
of $2,510,000 was attributable our retail discontinue operations described above. As we exit our retail business,
our future capital expenditures refated to that segment are expected to decrease. Future capital expenditures will
be primarily focused on our Castroville roasting facility to increase capacity and other production efficiency
related improvements.

Net cash provided by financing activities for fiscal 2007 of $290,000 was primarily the result from the
exercise of employee stock options during the current fiscal year.

Outstanding Debt and Financing Arrangements

On May 10, 2004, we entered inte a $5,000,000 Contingent Convertible Note Purchase Agreement. The
agreement provides for us 1o, at our election, issue notes with up to an aggregate principal amount of $5,000,000.
The notes are to be amortized on a monthly basis at a rate that will repay 60% of the principal amount of the note
by June 30, 2008. The remaining 40% will mature on that date. Interest is payable at three-month LIBOR plus
5.30%, and a facility fee of 1.00% annually is payable on the unused portion of the facility. The agreement
contains covenants among others that limit the amount of indebtedness that we may have outstanding in relation
to our tangible net worth. As of June 27, 2007, we were in compliance with all the covenants in the agreement.
Notes are convertible into our common stock only upon certain changes of control. For notes issued and repaid,
warrants to purchase shares are to be issued with the same rights and restrictions for exercise as existed for
convertibility of the notes at the time of their issnance. Warrants are exercisable only in the event of a change of
control and expire on June 30, 2010. The fair value of warrants issued with respect to notes repaid will be
recorded as a discount to debt, at the date of issuance, which will then be amortized using the effective interest
method. Warrants to purchase our common stock will be issued only upon a change in control. The lender under
this agreement is a limited partnership of which the chairman of our board of directors serves as the sole general
partner. A total of 1,270,738 warrants are issuable upon a change in control for previous debt repayments under
this facility. We have issued 4,219 warrants as of June 27, 2007. As of June 27, 2007, the Company had no
amounts outstanding under the facility and $5,000,000 available for borrowing.

On June 30, 2004, we entered into Amendment No. 1 to Contingent Convertible Note Purchase Agreement
(“Amendment No. 1), which revised the definition of “Availability” to mean, on any date, the loan amount less
the sum of the principal amounts then ocutstanding under the Note Purchase Agreement. Under the original Note
Purchase Agreement, availability was calculated using a formula that reduced availability over time.

On November 4, 2003, we entered into a new Credit Agreement with Bank of the West. The agreement
provides for a $750,000 letter of credit facility that expires on October 15, 2007. The letter of credit facility is
secured by a deposit account at Bank of the West. As of June 27, 2007, this deposit account had a balance of
$669,000, which is shown as restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets. As of June 27, 2007, $651,000 of
letters of credit was outstanding under the letter of credit facility. The agreement contains covenants that, among
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other matters, require us to submit financial statements to the bank within specified time periods. As of June 27,
2007, the Company was in compliance with all Bank of the West agreement covenants.

On March 31, 2006, we entered into Amendment No. 2 to Contingent Convertible Note Purchase
Agreement (“Amendment No. 2”). Amendment No. 2: {i} contains a waiver with respect to the default of the
Minimum EBITDA Covenant as of March 8, 2006 and removes the Minimum EBITDA from the Note Purchase
Agreement; (ii) clarifies that warrants to purchase our common stock will be issued with respect to repaid
principal amounts only upon a change in control; (iii) increases the interest rale applicable to outstanding
amounts under the credit facility by 2%, to LIBOR plus 5.30%; and (iv) extended the exercise date of all
warrants issued or to be issued under the Note Purchase Agreement by one year, to May 10, 2009 which was
subsequently extended as discussed below. The maturity date for any notes issued in the future was unaffected by
Amendment No. 2. As of June 27, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all agreement covenants as
amended by Amendment No. 2.

On September 22, 2006, we entered inte Amendment No. 3 to Contingent Convertible Note Purchase
Agreement (“Amendment No. 3”). Amendment No. 3 (i) changes the date specified in the definition of “Maturity
Date” from May 10, 2007 to June 30, 2008; (ii) adjusts the calculation of monthly payments to reflect the
extended maturity date; (iii) removes a condition precedent to each loan that previously required there to be no
material adverse effect or event reasonably likely to result in a material adverse effect before the obligation of the
lender to purchase any note arose; (iv) amends the events of default so that an event that has, or is reasonably
likely to have, a material adverse effect will not be considered such an event of default; (v) amends the notice
requirements so that the Company is not required to give notice to the lender of any event that is reasonably
likely to have a material adverse effect; and (vi) extends the exercise date of all warrants issued or to be issued
under the Note Purchase Agreement to June 30, 2010.

Based on the terms of our credit agreements, as amended, cash received from the sale of Diedrich and
Coffee People retail locations, the focus on growing the wholesale and franchise business segments, the status of
our balance sheet and the overall business outlook for us and the specialty coffee market, our management
believes that current cash balance, cash from ongoing operations, and funds available to us from our current
credit agreements will be sufficient to satisfy our working capital needs at the anticipated operating levels for at
least the next twelve months. Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the extent
and timing of the rate at which our business grows, if at all, with corresponding demands for working capital. We
may be required to seek additional funding through either debt financing, or equity financing or a combination of
funding methods 1o meet our capital requirements and sustain our operations. However, additional funds may not
be available on terms acceptabie to us or at all.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of June 27, 2007, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of
Regulation S-K.

Commitments and Contractual Obligations

The following is a summary of our contractual obligations and commitments as of June 27, 2007:

Payments Due By Period
Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 year years years 5 years
{In thousands)

Company operated retail locations and

other operating leases $ 7,796 $1.452 $2.567 $1,584 $2,193
Franchise operated retail locations

operating leases 17,628 3,507 5,429 4,069 4,623
Green coffee commitments 1,708 1,708 -— — —

$27,132 $6,667 $7996  $5,653 $6,816

31




At June 27, 2007, the Company had capital commitments of $4,478,000 comprised of $3,563.,000 for our
roasting facility, $395,000 for wholesale, $320,000 for corporate and $200,000 for store upgrades.

We have also entered into employment agreements with two executives that provide for severance payments
in the event that these individuals are terminated without cause or that they terminate their employment as a
result of a constructive termination. These severance payments range from six months to one year's salary. Our
Company’s maximum liability for severance under the contracts is currently $282,000. Because such amounts
are contingent they have not been included in the above table.

We have obligations under non-cancelable operating leases for our coffee houses, roasting facility and
administrative offices. Lease terms are generally for 10 to 20 years with renewal options and generally require us
to pay a proportionate share of real estate taxes, insurance, common area and other operating costs. Some retail
leases provide for contingent rental payments based on sales thresholds. In addition, we are liable on the master
leases for 67 franchised locations. Under our historical franchising business model, we executed the master
leases for these locations, and entered into subleases on the same terms with our franchisees, which typically pay
their rent directly to the landlords. Should any of these franchisees default on their subleases, we would be
responsible for making payments thereunder. Our maximum theoretical future exposure at June 27, 2007,
computed as the sum of all remaining lease payments through the expiration dates of the respective leases, was
$17,628,000. This amount does not take into consideration any mitigating measures that we could take to reduce
this exposure in the event of default, including re-leasing the locations or terminating the master lease by
negotiating a lump sum payment to the landlord that is less than the sum of all remaining future rents and other
amounts payable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires vs to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts. The estimates and assumptions are evaluated on an ongoing basis and are based on
historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable. Accounts significantly
impacted by estimates and assumptions include, but are not limited to, franchise receivables, allowance for bad
debt reserves, fixed asset lives, goodwill, intangible assets, income taxes, self-insurance and workers’
compensation reserves, store closure reserves, stock-based compensation, the valuation allowance for net
deferred tax assets and contingencies. We believe that the following represent our critical accounting policies and
estimates used in the preparation of our condensed consolidated financial statements. The following discussion,
however, does not list all of ocur accounting policies and estimates.

Impairment of Property and Equipment and Other Amortizable Long-Lived Assets Held and Used

Each quarter, or upon the occurrence of a triggering event as defined in SFAS No. 144, we evaluate the
carrying value of individual stores when the operating results have reasonably progressed to a point to adequately
evaluate the probability of continuing operating losses or a current expectation that a store will be sold or
otherwise disposed of before the end of its previously estimated useful life. In making these judgments, we
consider the period of time since the store was opened or remodeled, and the trend of operations and expectations
for future sales growth. For stores selected for review, we estimate the future cash flows from operating the store
over its estimated useful life. We make judgments about future same-store sales and the operating expenses and
estimated useful life that we would expect with such level of same-store sales.

The most significant assumptions in our analysis are those used when we estimate a unit’s future cash flows.
We generally use the assumptions in our strategic plan and modify them as necessary based on unit specific
information. If our assumptions are incorrect, the carrying value of our operating unit assets may be overstated or
understated.

Impairment of Goodwill

At the reporting unit level, goodwill is tested for impairment annually or whenever an event or circumstance
indicates that impairment has likely occurred. We consider the reporting unit level to be the segment level since
the components within each segment have similar economic characteristics, including products and services,
production processes, types or classes of customers and distribution methods. The impairment, if any, is
measured based on the estimated fair value of the segment. Fair value can be determined based on discounted
cash flows or valuations of similar businesses. Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds
its estimated fair value.

For fiscal year 2007, an independent third party analysis of the fair value of the wholesale and franchise
operating segments was conducted to determine whether any potential impairment to the goodwill associated
with the operating segments was appropriate. The definition of value used in this analysis was fair value, which
is defined as the amount at which an asset or assets could be bought or sold in a current transaction between
willing parties, that is, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. The determination of fair value of the operating
segmenis was based on financial statements and projections supplied by Management in addition to current and
future economic, market and competitive conditions, and other relevant factors.

In addition, a sensitivity analysis was completed to determine at what point impairment of the carrying value
of the goodwill associated with the wholesale business segment would be appropriate. Using historical trends and
the projected growth rates, the sensitivity analysis indicates that an annual 22% decline in cash flow into
perpetuity would trigger a potential impairment of the goodwill associated with the wholesale business segment,
The wholesale business segment has experienced significant revenue growth over the past two years averaging
approximately 31% average annual growth from fiscal year 2005 to fiscal year 2007. This wholesale business
segment is not on a declining revenue growth curve, but instead is experiencing significant growth in revenue.
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Though the Gloria Jean’s domestic franchise operating segment has experienced declining revenue in recent
years, the business segment has relatively few assets other than the associated goodwill. However, the analysis
indicates that it would require a significant drop in the franchise store count, approximately 29%, before the
Gloria Jean’s franchise operations business segment carrying value exceeded its calculated fair value.

If our assumptions used in performing the impairment test prove inaccurate, the fair value of the segments
may ultimately prove to be significantly higher or lower, thereby causing the carrying value to be less than or to
exceed the fair value and indicating impairment has or has not occurred. If our assumptions are incorrect, the
carrying value of our goodwill may be understated or overstated. Our annual impairment measurement date is
our fiscal year end.

Estimated Liability for Closing Stores

We make decisions to close stores based on prospects for estimated future profitability and sometimes we
are forced to close stores due to circumstances beyond our control (e.g., a landlord’s refusal to negotiate a new
lease). Our management team evaluates each store’s performance every period. When stores continue to perform
poorly, we consider the demographics of the location, as well as the likelihood of being able to improve the
performance of an unprofitable store. Based on the management team’s judgment, we estimate the future net cash
flows. If we determine that the store will not, within a reasonable period of time, operate at break-even cash flow’
or be profitable, and we are not contractually obligated to continue operating the store, we may close the store.
Additionally, franchisees may close stores for which we are the primary lessee. If the franchisee cannot make
payments on the lease, we continue making the lease payments and establish an estimated liability for the closed
store if we decide not to operate it as a company operated store. Effective January 1, 2003, we established the
estimated liability on the actual closure date which is generally the date on which we cease to receive economic
benefit from the unit. We also review the net cash flows to determine the need to provide for asset impairment.

The estimated liability for closing stores on properties vacated is generally based on the term of the lease
and the lease termination fee that we expect to pay, as well as the estimated maintenance costs that we expect to
pay until the lease has been abated. The amount of the estimated liability is generally the present value of ‘the
estimated future payments. The interest rate used to calculate the present value of these liabilities is based on our
incremental borrowing rate at the time the liability is established. The related discount is amortized and shown in
provision for asset impairment and restructuring costs or cost of sales and related occupancy, net in our
consolidated statements of operations.

A significant assumption used in determining the amount of the estimated liability for closing stores is the
amount of the estimated liability for future lease payments on vacant stores, which we determine based on our
assessment of our ability to successfully negotiate early terminations of our lease agreements with the lessors or
to sublease the property. Additionally, we estimate the cost to maintain leased and owned vacant properties until
the lease has been abated. If the costs to maintain properties increase, or it takes longer than anticipated to sell
properties or sublease or terminate leases, we may need to record additional estimated liabilities. If the leases on
the vacant stores are not terminated or subleased on the terms we used to estimate the liabilities, we may be
required to record losses in future periods. Conversely, if the leases on the vacant stores are terminated or
subleased on more favorable terms than we used to estimate the liabilities, we reverse previously established
estimated liabilities through the line item in which it was originally recorded, resulting in an increase in operating
income.

Estimated Liability for Self-Insurance and Workers’ Compensation

We are self-insured for a portion of our losses related to workers” compensation insurance for policy years
ended prior to October, 2006. We obtained stop loss insurance for individual workers’ compensation claims with
a $250,000 deductible per occurrence and a program maximum for all claims of $750,000. Insurance liabilities
and reserves are accounted for based on the present value of actuarial estimates of the amount of incurred and
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unpaid losses, based approximately on a risk-free interest rate. These estimates rely on actuarial observations of
historical claim loss development. Management, in determining the estimated liability, bases the assumptions on
the average historical losses on claims we have incurred. The actual loss development may be better or worse
than the development we estimated in conjunction with the actuary. In that event, we will modify the reserve. As
a result, if we experience a higher than expected number of claims or the costs of claims are greater than
expected, then we may adjust the expected losses upward and our future self-insurance expenses will rise.

Franchised Operations

We monitor the financial condition of certain franchisees and record provisions for estimated losses on
receivables when we believe that our franchisees are unable to make their required payments to us. Each period
we perform an analysis to develop estimated bad debts for each franchisee. We then compare the aggregate result
of that analysis to the amount recorded in our consolidated financial statements as the allowance for doubtful
accounts and adjust the allowance as appropriate. Over time, our assessment of individual franchisees may
change. For instance, we have had franchisees for whom we had estimated a loss equal to the total amount of
their receivable, who have paid us in full or established a consistent record of payments (generally one year) such
that we determined an allowance was no longer required.

Depending on the facts and circumstances, there are a number of different actions we or our franchisees may
take 1o resolve franchise collections issues. These actions may include the purchase of franchise stores by us or
by other franchisees, a modification to the franchise agreement, which may include a provision to defer certain
royalty payments or reduce royalty rates in the future, a restructuring of the franchisee’s business or finances
(including the restructuring of leases for which we are the primary or secondary obligee) or, if necessary, the
termination of the franchise agreement. The allowance established is based on our assessment of the most
probable course of action that will occur.

In accordance with SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”
(“SFAS No. 146”), which we adopted on January 1, 2003, an estimated liability for future lease obligations on
stores operated by franchisees for which we are the primary or secondary obligee is established on the date the
franchisee closes the store, Also, we record an estimated liability for subsidized lease payments when we sign a
sublease agreement committing us to the subsidy.

The amount of the estimated liability is established using the methodology described in “Estimated Liability
for Closing Stores” above. Consistent with SFAS No. 146, we have not established an additional estimated
liability for potential losses not yet incurred. If sales trends or economic conditions worsen for our franchisees,
their financial health may worsen, our collection rates may decline and we may be required to assume the
responsibility for additional lease payments on franchised stores. In addition, entering into restructured franchise
agreements may result in reduced franchise royalty rates in the future.

Stock-Based Compensation

As discussed in the notes to consolidated financial statements, we have various stock-based compensation
plans that provide options for certain employees and outside directors to purchase common shares of stock. Prior
to June 30, 2005, we elected to account for stock-based compensation in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” which utilizes the intrinsic value
method of accounting for stock-based compensation, as opposed to using the fair-value method prescribed in
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Because of this election, we were required to make
certain disclosures of pro forma net income assuming we had adopted SFAS No. 123. Starting June 30, 2005, we
adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R, which sets accounting requirements for “share-based” compensation to
employees and non-employee directors, including employee stock purchase plans, and requires companies to
recognize in the statement of operations the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based
compensation.
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We determine the estimated fair value of stock-based compensation on the date of the grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model. The Black-Scholes option-pricing model requires us to apply highly subjective
assumptions, including our historical stock price volatility, expected life of the option and the risk-free interest
rate. A change in one or more of the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model may result in a
material change to the estimated fair value of the stock-based compensation. See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for assumptions used to determine the fair value of stock-based compensation.

Valuation Allowance for Net Deferred Tax Assets and Contingencies

As discussed above, we have recorded a 100% valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets. If we
have been profitable for a number of years and our prospects for the realization of our deferred tax assets are
more likely than not, we would then reverse our valuation allowance and credit income tax expense. When
circumstances warrant, we assess the likelihood that our net deferred tax assets will more likely than not be
realized from future taxable income. As of June 27, 2007, our net deferred tax assets and related valuation
allowance totaled approximately $5,601,000.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of SFAS Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48”) which seeks to reduce
the diversity in practice associated with the accounting and reporting for uncertainty in income tax positions. FIN
48 prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt the new requirements in the first
quarter of fiscal 2008. The cumulative effects, if any, of adopting FIN 48 will be recorded as an adjustment to
retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption. The Company has not yet determined the impact,
if any, of adopting FIN 48 on its consolidated financial staternents.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement on Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (“SFAS
No. 157"), “Fair Value Measurements.” This standard clarifies the definition of fair value for financial reporting,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires additional disclosures about the use of fair value
measurements, SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company has not yet determined the
impact, if any, of adopting SFAS No. 157 on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement on Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 (“SFAS
No. 159", “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” SFAS No. 159 permits
companies to make a one-time election to carry eligible types of financial assets and liabilities at fair value, even
if fair value measurement is not required under U.8. GAAP. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. The Company has not yet determined the impact, if any, of adoptmg SFAS No. 159 on
its consolidated financial statements.

OTHER MATTERS
Seasonality and Quarterly Results
Qur business experiences some variations in sales from quarter to quarter due to the holiday season and
other factors including, but not limited to, general economic trends, competition, marketing programs and the
weather, The fall and winter months are generally the best sales months but our geographic and product line

diversity provide for some sales stability in the warmer months when coffee consumption ordinarily
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decreases. As a result of these factors, and of the other contingencies and risk factors described elsewhere in this
report, the financial results for any individual quarter may not be indicative of the results that may be achieved in
a full fiscal year.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Market Risk Sensitive Items Entered Into for Trading Purposes
None.
Market Risk Sensitive Items Entered Into for Other Than Trading Purposes
We have exposure to market risk from two primary sources—interest rate risk and commodity price risk.
Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on our outstanding bank debt, At June 27,
2007, we had a $5,000,000 note facility with no outstanding balance, which could be affected by changes in short
termn interest rates. At fiscal year-end, the interest rate was 10.65%. During our fiscal year 2007, three month
LIBOR rates ranged from 5.33% 10 5.52%

Commodity Price Risk

Green coffee, the principal raw material for our products, is subject to significant price flucmations caused
by a number of factors, including weather, political, and economic conditions. To date, we have not used
commadity-based financial instruments to hedge against fluctuations in the price of green coffee. To ensure that
we have an adequate supply of green coffec, however, we enter into agreements to purchase green coffee in the
future that may or may not be fixed as to price. At June 27, 2007, we had commitments to purchase coffee
through fiscal year 2008, totaling $1,708,000 for 1,065,000 pounds of green coffee, the majority of which were
fixed as to price. The coffee scheduled to be delivered to us in fiscal year 2008 pursuant to these commitments
will satisfy approximately 18% of our anticipated green coffee requirements for the fiscal year. Assuming we
require approximately 4,838,000 additional pounds of green coffee during fiscal 2008 for which no price has yet
been fixed, each 30.01 per pound increase in the price of green coffee could result in $48,000 of additional cost.
However, because the price we pay for green coffee is negotiated with suppliers independent of the commodities
market we believe that the commodity market price for green coffee, in general, would have to increase
significantly, by as much as $0.25 per pound, before suppliers would increase the price they charge us.

Item 8,  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The financial statements and supplementary data required by this item are set forth at the end of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
Item 9A, Controls and Procedures.

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)), in connection with

the preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as of June 27, 2007. Our management, with the
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participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, also conducted an evaluation of our
internal control over financial reporting to determine whether any changes occurred during the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting,

Based on the review described above, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer determined
that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter
ended June 27, 2007, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement
for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
no later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended June 27, 2007.

Item 11. Executive Compensation,

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement
for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
no later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended June 27, 2007.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement
for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
no later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended June 27, 2007.

Equity Compensation Plan Information.

The following table summarizes the equity compensation plans under which our common stock may be
issued as of June 27, 2007.

(a) (b} {c)

Plan category Number of securities to be Weighted-average exercise Number of securities
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding options, remaining available for
outstanding options, warrants and rights future issuance under equity
warrants and rights compensation plans

(excluding sccurities
reflected in column (a))

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 554,675(1) $5.12 466,584(2)

Total 554,615 $5.12 466,584

(1) Represents options to purchase shares of our comman stock issued under: the Diedrich Coffee, Inc. 2000 Equity Incentive Plan; the
Diedrich Coffee, Inc. 2000 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan; and the Amended and Restated Diedrich Coffee, Inc. 1996
Stock Incentive Plan,

(2) Represents securities available for issuance under the Diedrich Coffee, Inc, 2000 Equity Incentive Plan.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement
for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
no later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended June 27, 2007.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services,

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement
for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
no later than 120 days afier the close of the fiscal year ended June 27, 2007,

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

Financial Statements and Schedules.

The financial statements and schedules required to be filed hereunder are set forth at the end of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1.

Exhibits.

The Exhibit Index attached hereto is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

September 25, 2007

DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC.

By:

/s/ STEPHEN V. COFFEY

Stephen V. Coffey
Chief Executive Officer
{on behalf of the registrant}

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ PAUL HEESCHEN

Title Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors  September 25, 2007

Paul Heeschen

/s/ STEPHEN V. COFFEY

Chief Executive Officer September 25, 2007

Stephen V. Coffey

/s/ SEAN M. MCCARTHY

Vice President and Chief Financial  September 25, 2007

Sean M. McCarthy

Officer (Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer)
/s/ TIMOTHY J. RYAN Director September 25, 2007
Timothy F. Ryan
/s GREG PALMER Director September 25, 2007
Greg Palmer
/s/ RUSS PHILLIPS Director September 25, 2007

Russ Phillips
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Diedrich Coffee, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Diedrich Coffee, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of June 27, 2007 and June 28, 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the pericd ended June 27, 2007. In connection
with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the supplementary information
included in Schedule 1I. These consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required
to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenial respects,
the financial position of Diedrich Coffee, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 27, 2007 and June 28, 2006, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 27, 2007, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As more fully described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective June 30, 2005, the
Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”

fs/ BDO Seidman, LLP

Costa Mesa, California
September 25, 2007




DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $163,000 at
June 27, 2007 and $1,863,000 at June 28, 2006
Inventories
Assets of discontinued operations
Income tax refund receivable
Current portion of notes receivable, less allowance of $63,000 at June 27,
2007 and $0 at June 28, 2006
Advertising fund assets, restricted
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Notes receivable, less allowance of $75,000 at June 27, 2007 and $0 at
June 28, 2006 :
Cash surrender value of life insurance policy
Other assets

Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Liabilities of discontinued operations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Accrued expenses
Franchisee deposits
Deferred franchise fee income
Advertising fund liabilities
Accrued provision for store closure

Total current liabilities
Deferred rent
Deferred compensation

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 8 and 9)

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 8,750,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 5,448,000 shares at June 27, 2007 and 5,308,000 shares at
June 28, 2006

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity

June 27, 2007

June 28, 2006

$ 2,593,000

$ 6,873,000
669,000 583,000
4,069,000 2,829,000
4,323,000 3,416,000
— 7,382,000
533,000 516,000
1,031,000 1,137,000
339,000 217,600
252,000 387,000
18,089,000 - 19,060,000
4,437,000 3,709,000
6,832,000 6,832,000
3,386,000 3,972,000
430,000 391,000
159,000 166,000
$ 33,333,000 $ 34,130,000
$ 125,000 $ 792,000
3,814,000 2,929,000
2,052,000 2,481,000
1,725,000 1,779,000
674,000 599,000
82,000 104,000
339,000 217,000
686,000 292,000
9,497,000 9,193,000
216,000 248,000
468,000 422,000
10,181,000 9,863,000
54,000 53,000
59,671,000 59,022,000
(36,573,000 (34,808,000)
23,152,000 24,267,000
$ 33,333,000 $ 34,130,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net revenue:
Wholesale and other
Franchise revenue
Retail sales

Total revenue

Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales and related occupancy costs (exclusive of
depreciation shown separately below)
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
General and administrative expenses
Provision for asset impairment and restructuring costs
{Gain) loss on asset disposals

Total costs and expenses

Operating loss from continuing operations
Interest expense
Interest and other income, net

Loss from centinuing operations before income tax benefit
Income tax benefit

Loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax
benefit of $1,710,000, $241,000 and tax expense of
$93,000, respectively

Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax expense
of $3,835,000, and $3,139,000, respectively

Net income (loss)

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:
Loss from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net
Net income (loss)

Weighted average and equivalent shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 27,2007  June 28,2006 June 29, 2005
$28,145,000 $21,244,000 $16,482,000

3,514,000 3,775,000 4,166,000
4,948,000 5,708,000 5,149,000
36,607,000 30,727,000 25,797,000
24,244 000 19,011,000 14,793,000
9,631,000 5,577,000 4,755,000
1,059,000 1,177,000 1,110,000
6,061,000 11,491,000 9,770,000
1,073,000 — —
14,000 (58,000) (4,000)
42,682,000 37,198,000 30,424,000
(6,075,000) (6,471,000} (4,627,000)
(230,000) (90,000) (189,000)
436,000 548,000 279,000
(5,869,000) (6,013,000 (4,537,000
2,120,000 560,000 1,626,000
(3,749,000) (5,453,000) {2,911,000)
(1,596,000) (2,343,000) 1,739,000
3,580,000 — 15,795,000
$(1,765,000) $(7,796,000) $14,623,000
3 (0.70) $ (1.03) $ (0.56)
3 0.37 $ {0.44) $ 3.36
$ (0.33) $ (1.47) $ 2.80
5,391,000 5,303,000 - 5,218,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance, June 30, 2004
Exercise of stock options
Stock compensation expense
Common Stock warrants
Net income

Balance, June 29, 2005
Exercise of stock options
Stock compensation expense
Net loss

Balance, June 28, 2006
Exercise of stock options
Stock compensation expense
Common Stock warrants
Net loss

Balance, June 27, 2007

Common Stock

Additional Total
Paid-In Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity
5,161,000 3$52,000 $58,058,000 $(41,635,000) $16,475,000
112,000 1,000 367,000 —_ 368,000
— — 47,000 —_ 47.000
-_— — 9,000 — 9,000
— — — 14,623,000 14,623,000
5,273,000 53,000 58,481,000 (27,012,000} 31,522,000
35,000 — 138,000 — 138,000
—_ - 403,000 — 403,000
—_ - — (7,796,000) (7,796,000)
5,308,000 53,000 59,022,000 (34,808,000 24,267,000
140,000 1,000 289,000 —_ 290,000
— —_— 284,000 — 284,000
— — 76,000 —_— 76,000
— — — (1,765,000) (1,765,000)
5,448,000 $54,000 $59.671,000 $(36,573,000) $23,152,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss)

Loss (income) from discontinued operations
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net

Loss from continuing operations:
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization and write off of loan fees
Amortization of note payable discount
Provision for bad debt
Income tax benefit
Provision for inventory obsolescence
Provision for asset impairment and restructuring
Proviston for store closure
Stock compensation expense
Notes receivable issued
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Notes Receivable
Income tax refund
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Accrued expenses
Deferred franchise fee income and franchisece deposits
Accrued provision for store closure
Deferred rent

Net cash used in continuing operations
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital expenditures for property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Acquisition of retail store

Payments received on notes receivable
Investment in restricted money market account

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing
operations

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 27,2007  June 28,2006  June 29, 2005
$(1,765,000) $(7,796,000) $ 14,623,000
1,596,000 2,343,000 (1,739,000)
(3.580,000) — (15,795,000)
(3,749,000) (5,453,000} (2,911,000)
1,059,000 1,177,000 1,110,000
25,000 32,000 35,000
76,000 — 7,000
233,000 589,000 213,000
(2,120,000) (560,000) (1,626,000)
90,000 86,000 89,000
1,073,000 — A
609,000 217,000 —
284,000 403,000 47,000
(304,000) (63,000} —
14,000 (58,000} {4,000)
(1,473,000) (1,215,000) (866,000)
(997,000) (558,000) (696,000)
135,000 80,000 (151,000)
(184,000) (373,000} (139,000)
(22,000) 1,505,000 —
{52,000) (356,000} (350,000)
885,000 286,000 498,000
14,000 (245,000) 696,000
339,000 (42,000) 410,000
53,000 (19,000) 47,000
(215,000) (91,0000 (18,000)
— 25,000 70,000
(4,227.000) (4,633,000 (3,539,000)
(2,611,000) (74,000) 632,000
(6,838,000) (4,707,000) (2,907,000)
(2,442,000) (1,273,000) (1,446,000)
83,000 50,000 31,000
- —_— (80,000)
1,180,000 1,070,000 67,000
(86,000) (583,000) -
(1,265,000) (736,000) (1,428,000)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

Year Ended Year Ended
June 27,2007  June 28, 2006

Year Ended
June 29, 2005

Capital expenditures for property and equipment of

discontinued operations (17,000) (2,553,000} (2,219,000)
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations, net 12,121,000 43,000 16,000,000
Net cas_h provided by (used in) investing activitics 10,839,000 (3,246,000} 12,353,000
Cash flows from financing activities:

Payments on long-term debt (3,000,000) — (1,983,000)
Payments on capital lease obligations — (67,000) (131,000)
Exercise of stock options 290,000 138,000 368,000
Borrowings under credit agreement 3,000,000 — 1,000,000
Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities of

continuing operations 290,000 71,000 (746,000)
Net cash used in financing activities of discontinued

operations (11,000) (18,000) (6,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 279,000 53,000 (752,000)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 4,280,000 (7,900,000) 8,694,000
Cash at beginning of year 2,593,000 10,493,000 1,799,000
Cash at end of year $ 6,873,000 $ 2,593,000 $10,493,000
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the period for:

Interest $ 125,000 $ 83,000 $ 357,000
Income taxes $ 74,000 $ 50,000 $ 2,828,000
Non-cash transactions: '
Issuance of notes receivable $ 304,000 g 66,000 $ 7,020,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices
Business

Diedrich Coffee, Inc. (“Company”) is a specialty coffee roaster, wholesaler, franchiser and retailer whose
brands include Diedrich Coffee, Gloria Jean’s, and Coffee People. The Company owns and operates 9 retail
locations and is the franchiser of 144 retail locations as of June 27, 2007, all of which are located in 30 states.
The Company also has over 800 wholesale accounts with businesses and restaurant chains. In addition, the
Company operates a coffee roasting facility in central California that supplies freshly roasted coffee beans to its
retail locations and to its wholesale customers.

Basis of Presentation and Fiscal Year End

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Diedrich Coffee, Inc. and its wholly owned
subsidiaries . All significant intercompany transactions are eliminated. The Company’s fiscal year end is the
Wednesday closest to June 30. In fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007, this resulted in a 52-week year.

Discontinued Retail Operations

On September 14, 2006, the Company and Starbucks entered into an asset purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) pursuant to which Starbucks agreed to purchase the Company’s leasehold interests in up to 40 of
the 47 locations where the Company operates retail stores under the Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People brands
(the “Company Stores”), along with certain related fixtures and equipment, improvements, prepaid items, and
ground lease improvements, and to assume certain liabilities as set forth in the Agreement. On December 12,
2006, the Company’s stockholders approved the Agreement at the Company’s annual stockholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the actual amount paid by Starbucks was dependent on which and how many of
the Company Stores would ultimately be transferred to Starbucks. Ten percent of the amount paid to the
Company upon transfer of the Company Stores was required to be deposited into an escrow fund to be held in
connection with the Company’s indemnification obligations.

As part of the Agreement, the Company has agreed 1o a non-compete provision that for three years after the
closing of the transaction, restricts the Company’s ability to operate or have any interest in the ownership or
operation of any entity operating any retail specialty coffee stores in any city where a Company Store was
located at the time that the asset purchase agreement was executed. The non-compete provision applies only to
stores opened after the date of the asset purchase agreement and does not apply to (1) any retail stores operated
under the “Gloria Jean’s” brand name, (2) wholesale sales to retail businesses that are not operated by the
Company, or other non-retail businesses, or (3) the conversion of Company-operated stores existing on the date
of the asset purchase agreement to franchise stores. The Company has also agreed that it will not solicit any
Starbucks employee to enter the Company’s employment for three years after the closing of the transaction.

The closing for the transfer of the initial group of Company Stores occurred on January 16, 2007, which
related to the transfer of 15 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People leaseholds and related assets to Starbucks in
exchange for a cash payment of approximately $5,560,000 to the Company and the deposit of approximately
$618.000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the closing for a second group of Company stores, which
occurred on February 2, 2007, the Company transferred an additional 13 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People
leaseholds and related assets to Starbucks and agreed to retain three Company stores that were the subject of the
Agreement in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $5,565,000 to the Company and the deposit of
approximately $514,000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the third closing, which occurred on
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DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

February 9, 2007, the Company transferred one additional Diedrich Coffee store’s leasehold and related assets to
Starbucks in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $63,000 to the Company and the deposit of
approximately $7,000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the fourth closing, which occurred on
February 28, 2007, the Company transferred one additional Diedrich Coffee store’s leaschold and related assets
to Starbucks in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $586,000 to the Company and the deposit of
approximately $65,000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the fifth closing, which occurred on March 23,
2007, the Company transferred one additional Diedrich Coffee store’s leasehold and related assets to Starbucks
in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $220.000 to the Company and the deposit of approximately
$25,000 into the escrow fund. In connection with the sixth closing, which occurred on April 20, 2007, we closed
our last transfer under the Agreement with Starbucks with the transfer of one Diedrich Coffee store’s leasehold
and related assets in exchange for a cash payment of approximately $168,000 and the deposit of approximately
$18,000 into the escrow fund. As of June 27, 2007, the Company had approximately $1,247,000 held in escrow
which was subsequently paid to the Company on Jjuly 17, 2007. The Company will record the escrow payment
and related gain in the first quarter of fiscal 2008.

In separate transactions with three parties other than Starbucks, the Company transferred three retail store
location leaseholds and related assets on January 31, 2007, transferred certain assets {excluding leaseholds)
relating to two retail store locations on February 3, 2007 and transferred certain assets (excluding its leasehold)
relating to two retail store locations on March 9, 2007, and received proceeds from these transactions of
$620,000 and $10,000, and $25,000, respectively.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS
144™), the financial results of the retail operations that were sold or closed are reported as discontinued
operations for all periods presented.

The following accounts are reflected in Loss from Discontinued Operations in the condensed consolidated
statements of operations:

. Retail revenues for Diedrich Coffee, Inc. and Coffee People, Inc.
*  Cost of sales and related occupancy costs

*  Operating expenses

*  Depreciation and amortization

*  General and administrative expenses

. Interest expense

*  Provision for taxes paid

*  Impairment of assets

*  Employee termination costs

*  Operating lease termination costs

Assets of discontinued operations in the consolidated balance sheet at June 28, 2006 include the following
assets:

+ Inventory
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DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

¢ Prepaid expenses

»  Property and equipment, net
*  Goodwill

+  QOther assets

Liabilities of discontinued operations in the consolidated balance sheet at June 28, 2006 include the
following liabilities: )

=  Obligations under capital leases

*  Deferred rent

*  Accrued provision for store closure

Discontinued International Franchise Operations

On February 11, 20035, the Company completed the sale of its Gloria Jean’s international franchise
operations to Jireh International Pty, Lid., formerly the Gloria Jean's master franchisee for Australia, and certain
of its affiliates (collectively, “Jireh™) for $16,000,000 in cash and an additional $7,020,000 payable over the next
six years under license, roasting and consulting agreements. The sale resulted in a gain on the disposal of
discontinued operations of $15,795,000, net of $3,139,000 of taxes. The tax expense associated with the
discontinued operations differed from the statutory federal effective tax rate primarily due to changes in the

valuation allowance and permanently nondeductible goodwill associated with the discontinued operations.

The sale included the immediate transfer of related franchise rights to Yireh of 338 Gloria Jean's retail
locations outside the U.S. and Puerto Rico, including 242 located in Australia.

The Company was not required to defer any of the gain on the disposal of Gloria Jean’s international
franchise operations because all future payments are irrevocable, non-interest bearing and require no ongoing

obligation or performance by the Company to receive them.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the financial results of Gloria Jean’s international franchise operations
are reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented,

The following accounts are reflected in Discontinued Operations:

*  International franchise royalties, new store fees and roasting fees

»  Wholesale revenue and cost of goods sold associated with the sale of coffee to international franchisees
*  Bad debt expense related to intermational franchisees

*  General and administrative costs related to international operations and audit, tax and legal fees
relating to the transaction,
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DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

¢ Gain on sale of the international franchise operations, net of the related tax provision, and
»  Provision for foreign taxes paid on international revenues
The financial results included in discontinued operations were as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended  Year Ended
June 27,2007 June 28, 2006 June 29, 2005

Net Retail revenue $15,608,000  $28,721,000  $26,740,000
Net International Franchise revenue — — 3,935,000
Net revenue from discontinued operations $15,608,000 $28,721,000  $30,675,000
Loss from discontinued Retail operations, net of tax benefit of

$1,710,000, $241,000 and $225,000, respectively (1,596,000) (2,343,000) (404,000)
Earnings from discontinued International Franchise .

operations, net of tax expense of $318,000 —_ — 2,143,000
Gain on sale of discontinued Retail operations, net of tax

expense of $3,835,000 3,580,000 — —
Gain on sale of discontinued International Franchise

operations, net of tax expense of $3,139,000 —_ —_ 15,795,000

Total earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax $ 1,984,000 $(2,343,000) $17,534,000

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents, The Company had $5,000,000 and $0 of invested cash at June 27, 2007 and
June 28, 2006, respectively. The Company maintains cash balances at financial institutions that are in excess of
FDIC insurance coverage limits.

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on management’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in existing
accounts receivable. The Company evaluates its allowance for doubtful accounts based upon knowledge of its
customers and their compliance with credit terms. The evaluation process includes a review of customers’
accounts on a regular basis. The review process evaluates all account balances with amounts outstanding 90 days
and other specific amounts for which information obtained indicates that the balance may be uncollectible. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is adjusted based on such evaluation, with a correspending provision included in
operating expenses. Account balances are charged off against the allowance when management believes it is
probable the receivable will not be recovered. The Company does not have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure
related to its customers.

Inventories
Raw materials consist primarily of green bean coffee. Finished goods include roasted coffee, tea, accessory

products, and packaged foods. All products are valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out
method.
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DIEDRICH COFFEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Property and Depreciation

Praoperty and equipment, including assets under capital leases, are recorded at cost. Depreciation for
property and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of three to seven
years. Property and equipment held under capital leases and leasehold improvements are generally amortized
using the straight-line method. Property and equipment held under capital leases are generally amaortized over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or the term of the related leases. Leasehold improvements are generally
amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or 9 years or the term of the related leases.

Major remodels and improvements are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend
the life of the respective assets are charged to expense as incurred.

‘Deferred Financing Costs

Costs related to the issuance of debt are deferred and amortized using a method that approximates the
effective interest method as a component of interest expense over the terms of the respective debt issues,

Store Pre-opening Costs

Direct and incremental costs incurred prior to the opening of a retail coffeechouse location are expensed as
incurred.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, inventories, prepaid expenses, other assets, notes
receivable, accounts payable, accrued compensation, accrued expenses, and franchisee deposits approximate fair
value because of the short-term maturity of these financial instruments. The Company believes the carrying
amounts of the Company’s long-term debt approximates fair value because the interest rate on these instrument
are subject to change with market interest rates and other terms and conditions are consistent with terms currently
available to the Company.

Cost of Sales and Related Occupancy Costs

Cost of sales and related occupancy costs include cost of purchased products, inbound freight charges,
purchasing and receiving costs, inspection costs, warehousing costs, internal transfer costs and all other costs of
our disiribution network and retail store occupancy costs.

Certain lease agreements provide for scheduled rent increases during the lease terms or for rental payments
commencing on a date other than the date of initial occupancy. Rent expense is recorded for the total rent payable
during the lease term on a straight-line basis over the respective terms of the leases. The lease term used for
straight-line rent expense is calculated from the date the company obtains possession of the leased premises
through the lease termination date.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include compensation costs, utilities, advertising and marketing, business insurance,
taxes, licenses, fees and bank charges.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses include compensation costs, auditing and accounting, legal, office rent,
telephone, consulting and outside services, and Director’s and Officer’s insurance.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”
(“SFAS No. 109™). This statement requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future
consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s financial statements or tax returns. The
measurement of the deferred items is based on enacted tax laws. In the event the future consequences of
differences between financial reporting bases and the tax bases of the Company's assets and liabilities result in a
deferred tax asset, SFAS No. 109 requires an evaluation of the probability of being able to realize the future
benefits indicated by such asset. A valuation allowance related to a deferred tax asset is recorded when it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

“Basic” earnings per-share represents net earnings divided by the weighted average shares outstanding,
excluding all potentially dilutive common shares. “Diluted” earnings per-share reflects the dilutive effect of all
potentially dilutive common shares.

Goodwill

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations,” (“SFAS No. 141"} and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
(“SFAS No. 142"). SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 also specifies criteria intangible assets acquired in 2
purchase method business combination must meet to be recognized and reported apart from goodwill. SFAS
No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but
instead are tested for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors the Company considers important which could trigger an
impairment review include significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future
operating results, significant changes in the manner of use of acquired assets or the strategy for the overall
business, and significant negative industry or economic trends. The Company’s annual impairment measurement
date is the fiscal year end. The Company has performed annual evaluations of its goedwill since June 30, 2001 in
order to properly state its goodwill (see Notes 6 and 11). No provision for impairment was recorded in fiscal
2005, 2006 and 2007.

Stock Option Plans

On June 30, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”
(*SFAS No. 123R™). SFAS No. 123R sets accounting requirements for “share-based” compensation to
employees and non-employee directors, including employee stock purchase plans, and requires companies to
recognize in the statement of operations the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based
compensation.

The Company chose the modified-prospective transition alternatives in adopting SFAS No. 123R. Under the
modified-prospective transition method, compensation cost is recognized in financial statements issued subsequent
to the date of adoption for all stock-based payments granted, modified or settled after the date of adoption, as well
as for any unvested awards that were granted prior to the date of adoption. Because the Company previously
adopted only the pro forma disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, it will recognize compensation cost relating to
the unvested portion of awards granted prior to the date of adoption using the same estimate of the grant-date fair
value and the same attribution method used to determine the pro forma disclosures under SFAS No. 123, except
that forfeitures rate will be estimated for all options, as required by SFAS No. 123R,
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Awards granted prior to the Company’s implementation of SFAS No. 123R were accounted for under the
recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB
No, 25"), and related interpretations. Accordingly, stock-based employee compensation cost of $47,000 is
reflected in net income in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal year ended
June 29, 2005 because certain options granted under the Company’s plans had exercise prices greater than the
market vatues of the undertying common stock on the date of gram.

Pro forma net income and pro forma net income per share, as if the fair value-based method of SFAS
No. 123 had been applied in measuring compensation cost for stock-based awards, is as follows:

Year Ended
June 29, 2005
Net income as reported $14,623,000
Add: Stock based employee compensation expense included in reported
net income, net of related tax effects 47,000
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under
the fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (528,000}
Pro forma net income $14,142,000
Basic and dilutive net income per share ~ as reported 8 2.80
Basic and dilutive net income per share — pro forma 3 27

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option valuation
mode! that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility of the price of the Company’s stock. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and
employee termination rates within the valuation model. The expected term of options is derived from the output
of the option valuation model and represents the period of time that options are expected to be outstanding. The
risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in
effect at the time of grant. The fair values of the options were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model based on the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 27,2007  June 28,2006  June 29, 2005

Risk free interest rate 4.54% -529% 4.00% - 4.74% 4.00%
Expected life 2 years 2 years 6 years
Expected volatility 55% - 64% 44% - 15% 44%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Forfeiture rate 502%-6.32% 1.65%-4.97% N/A

Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, This
requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of
are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The Company recorded an asset
impairment charge of $1,073,000 in fiscal 2007 to reduce the carrying value associated with four of its Gloria
Jean’s coffeehouses and three Diedrich coffechouses.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company's wholesale sales terms are FOB shipping point. Revenue from the sale of our wholesale
products is recognized when ownership legally transfers to the customer, which is upon shipment. These sales are
not subject to customer right of inspection or acceptance. Revenue from retail sales are recognized at the point of
sale. Initial franchise fees (“Front end fees™) are recognized when a franchised coffeehouse begins operations, at
which time the Company has performed its obligations related to such fees. Initial franchise fees apply primarily
in the case of domestic franchise development. Franchise royalties are recognized as earned, based upon a
percentage of a franchise coffeehouse sales over time.

The following table details the various components included in franchise revenue:

June 27, 2007  June 28, 2006  June 29, 2005

Royalties $3,276,000 $3,362,000 $3,432,000
Front end fees 238,000 413,000 393,000
Other — - 341,000
Total $3,514,000 $3,775,000 $4,166,000

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs are included as a component of cost of sales and related occupancy costs. A
corresponding amount is billed to the Company’s wholesale customers, and is included as a component of
wholesale and other revenue.

Concentrations

During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company had sales to one customer that represented approximately
14.3%, 7.3% and 3.6% of wholesale sales, respectively.

Advertising and Promotion Costs
The following table details the components of advertising and promotion costs:
Fiscal Years Ended
Advertising and Promotion Costs: June 27,2007  June 28,2006  June 29, 2005

Advertising and promotion payments $1,047,000 $1,179,000 $1,343,000
Less franchisee ad fund contributions 922,000 1,158,000 1,101,000
Net advertising and promotion payments $ 125,000 $ 20000 $ 242,000
Included in general and administrative

expense $ — $ 14,000 $ 104,000
Included in operating expenses 125,000 7,000 138,000
Total advertising and promotion expense $ 125,000 $ 21,000 $ 242,000

Total advertising and promotion costs are for Gloria Jeans Company brands sold in company-operated and
franchise units. Franchisees are required to contribute 2% of sales to an ad fund that is segregated and designated
for advertising. The Company acts as an agent for the franchisees with regard to these contributions. The
Company consolidates the fund into its financial statements on a net basis, whereby contributions from
franchisees, when received, are recorded as offsets to the Company’s reported advertising expenses, in
accordance with SFAS No. 45, “Accounting for Franchisee Fee Revenue”. As discussed in this Note 1 below, in
Variable Interest Entities, the Company began to consolidate the advertising fund as of June 30, 2004, also on a
net basis, as required for accounting periods ending after March 15, 2004.

The Company charges advertising costs to expense as incurred.
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Store Closures

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit
or Disposal Activities,” and now records these estimated costs when they are incurred rather than at the date of a
commitment to an exit or disposal plan. Such costs primarily consist of the estimated cost to terminate real estate
leases.

Amounts
Beginning Charged Cash Ending
Balance to Expense Adjustments Payments Balance
Accrued provision for store
closure
Year ended June 28, 2006 $ 91,000 § 401,000 $(75,000) $ (16,000) $401,000
Year ended June 27, 2007 $401,000  $1,051,000 5§ — $(641,000) $811,000

Amounts charged to expense for the years ended June 28, 2006 and June 27, 2007 were $401,000 and
$1,051,000, respectively. Of the $1,051,000 charged to expense in the current fiscal year, $609,000 and $442,000
are charged to cost of sales and related occupancy costs and discontinued operations, respectively, on the
consolidated statements of operations, Of the $811,000 reserve balance for store closures at June 27, 2007,
$686,000 and $125,000 are reserved for continuing operations and discontinued operations, respectively. Of the
$326,000, net charged to expense in the 2006 fiscal year, $217,000 and $109,000 are charged to cost of sales and
related occupancy costs and discontinued operations, respectively, on the consolidated statements of operations.
Of the $401,000 reserve balance for store closures at June 28, 2006, $292,000 and $109,000 are reserved for
continuing operations and discontinued operations, respectively.

Variable Interest Entities

On June 30, 2004 the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised), “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities—an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin (“ARB”) No. 5I” (“FIN 46R”) which
addresses the consolidation of entities in which a reporting enterprise has an economic interest but for which the
traditional voting interest approach to consolidation, based on voting rights, is ineffective in identifying where
control of the entity lies, or in which the equity investors do not bear the economic risks and rewards of the
entity. FIN 46R refers to those entities as variable interest entities (“VIEs"). FIN 46R requires the consolidation
of VIEs by the primary beneficiary that absorbs a majerity of the economic risks and rewards from the VIEs
activities.

The Company acquired its franchise operations in 1999. At June 27, 2007, there were 144 domestic
franchise units, all of which are owned by franchisees. The Company, as the franchisor, receives royalty fees on
franchise sales, but has no equity interest and does not share in profits or losses of the franchise operation. The
franchisees make the key decisions that impact the success of their operations. The Company’s rights are
protective in nature and are designed to preserve the value of the brand that it licenses to the franchisee through
the franchise agreement. Of the 144 domestic franchise locations, the Company provides subordinated financial
support to the extent that it is the primary lessee on 67 of the coffeehouse leases and subleases the premises to the
franchisees on a pass-through basis on the same terms as the primary lease. The franchisees generally pay rent
directly to the primary lease landlord.

The Company calculated the present value of the subordinated financial support provided to each of the
franchisees by the lease arrangements and compared it 10 the overall subordinated financing support as defined
by FIN 46R and determined that for all but six stores the Company was providing less than 50% of the
franchisees’ total subordinated financial support. For three stores a further quantitative test of the franchisee’s
equity indicated that it was well above the 10% minimum and that the franchisee would not be considered a VIE.
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The remaining three stores may be considered a VIE, however, management has not consolidated these franchise
operations into the Company’s financial statements because the Company is not the primary beneficiary.

The Company believes its risk of loss is not significant. As a condition to acquire a franchise, the
prospective franchisee is required to have a personal net worth of at least $350,000, an amount believed to be
sufficient to absorb possible franchise losses. Each franchisee is personally liable, either through direct
ownership of the franchise or by a personal guarantee if the franchise is operated as a company. The Company
looks to the franchisee’s personal assets to satisfy the franchise's obligations, including the lease on which the
Company is the primary lessee. This arrangement has historically insulated the Company from loss. In the rare
situation where the franchisee’s personal assets have been insufficient to meet the obligations of the franchise,
the Company has been able to accomplish an early termination of the lease at a substantial discount to the present
value of the rentals for the remaining primary lease term.

The Company’s franchise agreements require that the franchisees pay an advertising fund contribution of
2% of franchise sales. These funds are maintained in a segregated fund and used to pay for franchise brand
marketing. All contributions are used solely for brand advertising and none are revenue or income to the
Company. The fund is administered by an employee of the Company and is subject to audit by a franchisee
committee. In the event that the advertising fund is not sufficient to pay all outstanding invoices, the Company
could be contingently liable for their payment. Accordingly, the Company determined that consolidation of the
fund is appropriate under FIN 46R and adopted it in the quarter ended June 30, 2004. The Company included
$339,000 and $217,000 of advertising fund assets, restricted, and advertising fund liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet as of June 27, 2007 and June 28, 2006, respectively. Advertising fund assets are primarily cash,
which is segregated and restricted to use for franchise brand advertising. Advertising fund liabilities consist
mainly of accounts payable, accrued expenses and deferred obligations. As noted in “Advertising and Promotion
Costs” above, the advertising contributions and disbursements are reported in the consolidated statement of
operations on a net basis whereby contributions are recorded as offsets to the Company's reported operating and
general and administrative expenses.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance

The change in the cash surrender value (“CSV”) of company owned life insurance (“COLI") contracts, net
of insurance premiums paid and gains realized, is reported in compensation and benefits expense. See Note 15.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
materialty differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of SFAS Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48") which seeks to reduce
the diversity in practice associated with the accounting and reporting for uncertainty in income tax positions. FIN
48 prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 438 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt the new requirements in the first
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quarter of fiscal 2008. The cumulative effects, if any, of adopting FIN 48 will be recorded as ar adjustment to
retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption. The Company has not yet determined the impact,
if any, of adopting FIN 48 on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement on Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 “Fair Value
Measurements™ (“SFAS No. 157”), This standard clarifies the definition of fair value for financial reporting,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires additional disclosures about the use of fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 13, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company has not yet determined the
impact, if any, of adopting SFAS No. 157 on its consolidated financial statements,

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement on Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 permits companies to
make a one-time election to carry eligible types of financial assets and liabilities at fair value, even if fair value
measurement is not required under U.S. GAAP. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company has not yet determined the impact, if any, of adopting SFAS No. 159 on its
consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior periods to conform to the 2007 presentation.
2. Accounts Receivable

During the current fiscal year, the Company provided for $161,000 of additional allowance for doubtful
accounts and charged off $1,861,000 of accounts receivable against the reserve. The addition of $161,000
resulted from charges for Franchise rent and related recetvables of $135,000 with the balance of $26,000 from
wholesale accounts. Of the $1,861,000 of write off, $1,299,000 resulted from Franchise rent and related
receivables with the balance of $562,000 from wholesale accounts.

The following table details the components of net accounts receivable:

June 27,2007  June 28, 2006

Wholesale receivables $3,591,000 $ 2,959,000
Allowance for wholesale receivables (79,000) (615,000)
3,512,000 2,344,000

Franchise and other receivables 641,000 1,733,000
Allowance for franchise and other receivables (84,000) (1,248,000)
557,000 485,000

Total accounts receivable, net $4,069,000 $ 2,829,000
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Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

Unroasted coffee

Roasted coffee

Accessory and specialty items
Other food, beverage and supplies

4. Notes Receivable

Notes receivable consist of the following:

Notes receivable bearing interest at rates from (% to
8.0%, payable in monthly instaliments varying between
$115 and $3,869 and due on various dates through
August 2016. Notes are sccured by the assets sold under
the asset purchase and sale agreements or general
security agreement. 2007 amounts are net of a $138,000

allowance.

Notes receivable from a corporation discounted at an
annual rate of 8.0%, payable annually in installments
varying between $1,000,000 and $2,000,000, due

between January 31, 2007 and January 31, 2011.
Less: current portion of notes receivable

Long-term portion of notes receivable

5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is summarized as follows:

Leasehold improvements
Equipment

Furniture and fixtures
Construction in progress

Accumulated depreciation and amortization

June 27,2007  June 28, 2006
$2,101,000 $1,522,000
962,000 697,000
99,000 79,000
1,161,000 1,118,000
$4,323,000 $3,416,000
June 27,2007  June 28, 2006
$ 164,000 $ 206,000
4,253,000 4,903,000
(1,031,000} (1,137,000)
$ 3,386,000 $ 3,972,000
June 27,2007  June 28, 2006
$ 2,089,000 $ 3,435,000
11,597,000 10,547,000
108,000 475,000
1,066,000 133,000
14,860,000 14,590,000
(10,423,000) (10,881,000)
$ 4,437,000 $ 3,709,000

Property held under capitalized leases in the amount of $405,000 at June 28, 2006, is included in assets of
discontinued operations. Accumulated amortization of such equipment amounted to $128,000 at June 28, 2006.
In addition, the Company retired and disposed of $14,252,000 in cost and $9,658,000 of accumulated
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depreciation during the fiscal year 2007 that resulted from transactions with Starbucks and other third parties.
The Company recorded an asset impairment charge of $1,073,000 in fiscal 2007 to reduce the carrying value
associated with four of its Gloria Jean’s coffeehouses and three Diedrich coffechouses.

6. Intangible Assets

On April 20, 2007 the Company completed its transaction with Starbucks and other parties (See Note 1), as
a result $1,347,000 of retail operations goodwill was written off as part of the transaction.

On February 1, 2005 the Company purchased a retail location from one of its franchisees which resulted in
goodwill of $80,000.

The Company did not incur any goodwill impairment adjustments during fiscal years 2006 and 2007. It is
possible that the assumptions used by management related to the evaluation of the Company’s goodwill may
change or that actual results may vary significantly from management’s estimates. As a result, additional
impairment charges may occur.

Goodwill by segment was as follows:

June 27,2007  June 28, 2006

Wholesale Operations $6,311,000 $6,311,000
Franchise Operations 521,000 521,000
Goodwill $6,832,000 $6,832,000

7. Debt

On May 10, 2004 the Company entered into a $5,000,000 Contingent Convertible Note Purchase
Agreement. The agreement provides for the Company to, at its election, issue notes with up to an aggregate
principal amount of $5,000,000. The notes are to be amortized on a monthly basis at a rate that will repay 60% of
the principal amount of the note by June 30, 2008. The remaining 40% will mature on that date. Interest is
payable at three-month LIBOR pius 5.30%, and a facility fee of 1.00% annually is payable on the unused portion
of the facility. The agreement contains covenpants that limit the amount of indebtedness that the Company may
have outstanding in relation to its tangible net worth. As of June 27, 2007, the Company was in compliance with
all the covenants in the agreement. Notes are convertible into common stock only upon certain changes of
control. For notes issued and repaid, warrants to purchase shares are to be issued with the same rights and
restrictions for exercise as existed for convertibility of the notes at the time of their issuance. Warrants are
exercisable only in the event of a change of control and expire on June 30, 2010. The fair value of warrants
issued with respect to notes repaid will be recorded as a discount to debt, at the date of issuance, which will then
be amortized using the effective interest method. Warrants to purchase common stock of the Company will be
issued only upon a change in control of the Company. The lender under this agreement is a limited partnership of
which the chairman of the Company's board of directors serves as the sole general partner. A total of 1,270,738
warrants are issuable upon a change in control for previous debt repayments under this facility. The Company
has issued 4,219 warrants as of June 27, 2007. As of June 27, 2007, the Company had no amounts outstanding
under the facility and $5,000,000 available for borrowing.

On June 30, 2004, the Company entered into Amendment No. 1 to Contingent Convertible Note Purchase
Agreement (“Amendment No. 1”) which revised the definition of “Availability” to mean, on any date, the loan
amount less the sum of the principal amounts then outstanding under the Note Purchase Agreement. Under the
original Note Purchase Agreement, availability was calculated using a formula that reduced availability over
time.
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On November 4, 2005, the Company entered into a new Credit Agreement with Bank of the West. The
agreement provides for a $750,000 letter of credit facility that expires on October 15, 2007. The letter of credit
facility is secured by a deposit account at Bank of the West. As of June 27, 2007, this deposit account had a
balance of $669,000, which is shown as restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets. As of June 27, 2007,
$651,000 of letters of credit was outstanding under the letter of credit facility. The agreement contains covenants
that, among other matters, require the Company to submit financial statements to the bank within specified time
periods. As of June 27, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all Bank of the West agreement covenants.

On March 31, 2006, the Company entered into Amendment No. 2 to Contingent Convertible Note Purchase
Agreement (“Amendment No. 2”). Amendment No. 2: (i) contains a waiver with respect to the default of the
Minimum EBRITDA Covenant as of March 8, 2006 and removes the Minimum EBITDA from the Note Purchase
Agreement; (ii) clarifies that warrants to purchase common stock of the Company will be issued with respect to
repaid principal amounts only upon a change in control of the Company; (iii) increases the interest rate
applicable to outstanding amounts under the credit facility by 2%, to LIBOR plus 5.30%; and (iv) extended the
exercise date of all warrants issued or to be issued under the Note Purchase Agreement by one year, to May 10,
2009, which was subsequently extended as discussed below. The maturity date for any notes issued in the future
was unaffected by Amendment No. 2. As of June 27, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all agreement
covenants as amended by Amendment No 2.

On September 22, 2006, the Company entered into Amendment No. 3 to Contingent Convertible Note
Purchase Agreement (“Amendment No. 3”). Amendment No. 3 (i) changes the date specified in the definition of
“Maturity Date” from May 10, 2007 to June 30, 2008; (ii) adjusts the calculation of monthly payments to reflect
the extended maturity date; (jii) removes a condition precedent to each loan that previously required there to be
no material adverse effect or event reasonably likely to result in a material adverse effect before the obligation of
the lender to purchase any note arose; (iv) amends the events of default so that an event that has, or is reasonably
likely to have, a material adverse effect will not be considered such an event of default; (v) amends the notice
requirements so that the Company is not required to give notice to the lender of any event that is reasonably
likely to have a material adverse effect; and (vi) extends the exercise date of all warrants issued or to be issued
under the Note Purchase Agreement to June 30, 2010.

8. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments

As of June 27, 2007, the Company leases warehouse and office space in Irvine, California, and Castroville,
California, as well as 9 retail locations. The leases expire at various dates through November 2016. Certain of the
coffechouse leases require the payment of property taxes, normal maintenance and insurance on the properties
and additional rents based on percentages of sales in excess of various specified retail sales levels. Contingent
rent expense was insignificant for all periods presented.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases, franchise-system operating leases,
and minimum future sublease rentals expected to be received as of June 27, 2007, are as follows:

Year Ending June Non-Cancelable Operating Leases (D)

Company
operated retail Franchise
locations and  operated retail Other

Total other (A) locations (B)  locations {C)
2008 $ 4,959,000  $1,195,000 $ 3,507,000 $257,000
2009 4,226,000 1,146,000 2,888,000 192,000
2010 3,770,000 1,095,000 2,541,000 134,000
2011 3,106,000 863,000 2,189,000 54,000
2012 2,547,000 624,000 1,880,000 43,000
Thereafter 6,816,000 2,034,000 4,623,000 159,000
$25,424,000  $6,957,000 $17,628,000 $839,000

(A) Includes Irvine and Castroville office and warehouse space and company operated retail locations.
{B) The Company is liable on the master leases for 67 franchise locations. Under the Company’s historical

franchising business model, the Company executed the master leases for these locations, and entered
into subleases on the same terms with its franchisees, which typically pay their rent directly to the
landlords. Should any of these franchisees default on their subleases, the Company would be
responsible for making payments under the master lease. The Company’s maximum theoretical future
exposure at June 27, 2007, computed as the sum of all remaining lease payments through the expiration
dates of the respective leases, was $17,628,000. This amount does not take into consideration any
mitigating measures that the Company could take to reduce this exposure in the event of default,
including re-leasing the locations or terminating the master lease by negotiating a lump sum payment
to the landlord less than the sum of all remaining future rents and other amounts payable.

(C) The Company has leased and subleased land and buildings to others including closed locations or

D)

locations which have never opened. Many of these leases provide for fixed payments with contingent
rents when sales exceed certain levels, while others provide for monthly rentals based on a percentage
of sales. The Company directly pays the rents on these master leases, and collects associated rent
amounts directly from its sublessees.

Some leases contain increases for CPI in which case the Company has taken the CPI currently in effect
into account for purposes of computing minimum lease payments which are recognized on a straight-
line basis over the minimum lease term.

Rent expense under operating leases approximated $3,677,000, $4,122,000, and $3,461,000 for the years
ended June 27, 2007, June 28, 2006, and June 29, 2005, respectively. These amounts are net of sublease rental
income of $1,776,000, $1,879,000 and $1,620,000 for the years ended June 27, 2007, June 28, 2006, and June 29,
2005, respectively.

Purchase Commitments

At June 27, 2007, the Company had commitments to purchase coffe¢ through fiscal year 2008, totaling
$1,708,000 for 1,065,000 pounds of green coffee, the majority of which were fixed as to price. Such contracts are
generally short-term in nature, and the Company believes that their cost approximates fair market value.
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Capital Commitments

At June 27, 2007, the Company had capital commitments of $4,478,000 comprised of $3,563,000 for our
roasting facility, $395,000 for wholesale, $320,000 for corporate and $200,000 for store upgrades.

Guarantees and Indemnifications

The Company guarantees the performance of its subsidiary franchisor obligations and also indemnifies
franchisees for costs incurred in defending the Company’s trademarks and tradenames.

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of our business, we may become involved in legal proceedings from time to time.
Material pending legal proceedings to the business, to which we became aware of or were a party to during the
current fiscal year or subsequent thereto, but before the filing of this report, are summarized below:

On September 21, 2006, a purported class action complaint entitled Jason Reid; Kimberly Cornia, et al. v.
Diedrich Coffee., et al. was filed against the Company in United States District Court Central District of
California by two former employees, who worked in the positions of team member and shift manager. A second
similar purported class action complaint entitled Deborah Willems, er al. v. Diedrich Caffee., et al. was filed in
Orange County, California Superior Court on February 2, 2007, on behalf of another former employee who
worked in the position of general manager. These cases currently involve the issue of whether employees and
former employees who worked in California stores during specified time periods were deprived of overtime pay,
missed meal and rest breaks. In addition to unpaid overtime, these cases seek to recover waiting time penalties,
interest, attorneys’ fees and other types of relief on behalf of the current and former employees in the purported
class.

We intend to vigorously defend this litigation. Because the cases are in preliminary stages, we cannot yet
predict their outcome and potential financial impact on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

9. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Options

On October 20, 2000, the Company’s board of directors authorized the adoption of the Diedrich Coffee, Inc.
2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2000 Equity Incentive Plan™) and the concurrent discontinuation of the option
grants under the Diedrich Coffee, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Incentive Plan and the Diedrich
Coffee, Inc. 1996 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan. The Company’s stockholders approved the 2000
Equity Incentive Plan on October 16, 2000. A total of 1,087,500 shares of the Company’s common stock may be
issued under the 2000 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended. The board of directors determines the number of
shares, terms and exercise periods for awards under the 2000 Equity Incentive Plan on a case by case basis,
except for automatic annual grants of options to non-employee directors. Options generally vest ratably over
three years and expire ten years from the date of grant. The exercise price of options is generally equivalent to
the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.

During fiscal 2005, the Company issued Paul Heeschen, Lawrence Goelman, Peter Churm, Richard Spencer
and Randy Powell, as members of the Company’s Board of Directors, 15,000 options each to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock at a per share price of $4.65, which was below market value. The options were granted
under the 2000 Equity Incentive Plan previousty approved by stockholders. In 2005, the Company recognized
$47,000 in compensation expense related to these options in accordance with the provisions of APB 25.
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Information regarding the Company's stock options is summarized below:

Weighted

Average

Exercise
Options Price

Number of options authorized for future grant at June 27, 2007 466,584

Outstanding at June 30, 2004 969,242 3 5.27
Granted 102,500 $ 4.63
Exercised (111,666) $ 3.29
Forfeited (22,459) $12.32
Outstanding at June 29, 2005 937,617 $ 527
Granted 150,000 $ 4.82
Exercised (35,0000 $ 393
Forfeited (111,284) § 7.87
Outstanding at June 28, 2006 941,333 $ 4.94
Granted 125,000 §$ 3.70
Exercised (A) (259,038) §$ 3.42
Forfeited (252,620) §$ 5.69
Outstanding at June 27, 2007 554675 % 476

Weighted-average fair value of options granted:

Year ended June 29, 2005 $ 476
Year ended June 28, 2006 5 239
Year ended June 27, 2007 $ 1.71
Options exercisable:
At June 29, 2005 054,448
At June 28, 2006 786,332
At June 27, 2007 403,008
(A) Includes 150,000 options that were a cashless exercise transaction that resulted in 31,513 shares of common
stock.
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at June 27, 2007:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted  Weighted Weighted
Number Average Average Number Average
Range of Outstanding At Remaining Exercise  Exercisable At  Exercise
Exercise Price June 27,2007  Life (Years) Price June 27, 2007 (1) Price
$2.16-3%3.69 _ 122,500 7.82 $ 339 47,500 $ 3.09
$3.74-53.81 129,500 571 3.78 109,500 3.78
$383-%4.47 126,250 7.61 412 82,083 4.16
$4.64-%$4.65 120,000 822 4.64 120,000 4.64
$ 5.00 - $28.00 56,425 492 11.69 43,925 13.16
$2.16 - $28.00 554,675 7.07 $512 403,008 3505

(1) The weighted average remaining life for the options exercisable at June 27, 2007 was 6.2 years,

Stock option-based compensation expense included in the statement of operations for the fiscal year ended
June 27, 2007 was $284,000. As of June 27, 2007, there was approximately $144,000 of total unrecognized stock
aption-based compensation cost related to options granted under our plans that will be recognized over a
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weighted average period of 1.4 years. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended
June 27, 2007 was approximately $130,000.

A summary of the status of the Company’s unvested options as of June 27, 2007, and changes during the
fiscal year ended June 27, 2007, is presented below:

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair

Unvested Options Options Value ($)
Unvested options at June 28, 2006 155,000 4.64
Granted 118,000 3.69
Vested (102,000) 472
Forfeited (15,000) 4.45
Unvested options at June 27, 2007 156,000 3.89

The total fair value of vested options during the year ended June 27, 2007 was $480,000.
Stock Purchase Warrants

On May 8, 2001, in connection with the sale of 2,000,000 shares of Company common stock, the Company
issued warrants to Sequoia Enterprises, L.P., of which the Company’s chairman, Paul C. Heeschen, is the general
partner, to purchase 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of $4.80 per share. Other
investors also received warrants to purchase an additional 250,000 shares at a price of $4.80 per share. The
warrants were exercisable immediately upon issuance and expire on May 8, 20t 1. At June 27, 2007, all 500,000
warrants were outstanding.

The terms of the Contingent Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (see Note 7) provide that upon a change
of control, outstanding Notes are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at a price that is equal
to the greater of the price of the stock on the date that Note is issued or 85% of the average price paid per share
of common stock by a person who engages in a transaction that results in a change of control, as defined in the
Agreement. The Notes are convertible only if and when a change of control event occurs. As Notes are paid, the
Agreement provides that warrants are to be issued. The warrants are exercisable on substantially the same terms
as the Notes are convertible. The warrants are also only exercisable if and when a change of control event occurs.
The price of the Company’s common stock on May 10, 2004, the date that the first $1,000,000 Note was issued,
was $3.95 per share. The price of the Company’s common stock on September 15, 2004, the date that the second
$1,000,000 Note was issued, was $4.95 per share. During fiscal year 2007, the Company borrowed and repaid
Notes on three different occasions. The price of the company's common stock on August 24, 2006, the date that
the third $1,000,000 Note was issued, was $3.60 per share. The price of the Company’s common stock on
October 2, 2006, the date the fourth $1,000,000 Note was issued, was $3.83 per share. The price of the
Company’s common stock on December 22, 2006, the date the fifth $1,000,000 Notes was issued, was $3.56 per
share. Since all Notes were fully paid off in fiscal year 2005 and fiscal year 2007, a total of 1,270,738 warrants
are issuable. The Company has issued 4,219 warrants at June 27, 2007.

On March 31, 2006, the Company entered into Amendment No. 2 to Contingent Convertible Note Purchase
Agreement. Amendment No. 2 contains among other things, clarification that warrants to purchase common
stock of the Company will be issued with respect to repaid principal amounts only upon a change in control of
the Company. This amendment also extended the exercise date of all warrants issued or to be issued under the
Note Purchase Agreement by one year, to May 10, 2009.

On September 22, 2006, the Company entered into Amendment No. 3 to Contingent Convertible Note
Purchase Agreement. Amendment No. 3 extends the exercise date of all warrants issued or to be issued under the
Note Purchase Agreement to June 30, 2010,
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10. Income Taxes

The components of income tax benefit from continuing operations are as follows:

Current:
Federal
State

Current tax provision (benefit)

Deferred:
Federal
State

Deferred tax benefit

Total tax benefit from continuing operations

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 27,2007  June 28,2006  June 29, 2005
$ (17,000) $(386,000) $(1,386,000)
22,000 (174,000) (240,000)
5,000 (560,000) (1,626,000)
(1,676,000) — _
{449,000 — —
(2,125,000) — —
$(2,120,000) $(560,000) $(1,626,000)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting and income tax purposes. The significant components of deferred tax

assets and liabilities are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Accrued expenses
Qther, net

Total gross deferred tax assets

Less: valuation allowance

Deferred tax liabilities:
Installment gain and other

Net deferred tax assets

June 27,2007  June 28, 2006

$ 3436000  $ 3,399,000
141,000 119,000
1,179,000 2,634,000
1,126,000 1,019,000
1,169,000 736,000
17,051,000 7,907,000
(5,601,000) (5,094,000)
(1,450,000) (2,813,000)
$ —_ 3 —

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate with the Company’s effective income tax provision

{(benefit) rate for continuing operations is as follows:

Federal statutory rate .
State income taxes, net of Federal benefit
Goodwill and other non-deductible costs

Net operating loss utilization

Valuation allowance

Other

Year Ended Year Ended  Year Ended
June 27,2007 June 28, 2006 June 29, 2005
(34.0)% (34.0)% (34.0)%
5.1 (1.9) 3.6)
0.8 0.1 —
—_ — 29.3
8.6 22.6 (30.1)
6.4) 39 2.6
(36.1)% (9.3)% (35.8)%
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Due to the uncertainty of future taxable income, deferred tax assets resulting from these net operating losses
have been fully reserved. Due to the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards in the sale of the Gloria Jean's
international franchise operations and following a Section 382 analysis, as of June 27, 2007, net operating loss
carryforwards of $7,974,000 and $7,644,000 for federal and state income tax purposes, respectively are available
to be utilized against future taxable income for years through fiscal 2026, subject to possible annual limitation
pertaining to change in ownership rules under the Internal Revenue Code. Due to the uncertainty of future
taxable income, deferred tax assets resulting from these net operating loss carryforwards have been fully reserved
and are available to be utilized against future taxable income for years through fiscal 2026, subject to possible
annual limitation under the Internal Revenue Code.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected
future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical
taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management believes it is not more likely than not that the Company will not realize the benefits of
these deductible differences, and thus has recorded a valuation allowance against the entire deferred tax asset
balance. As of June 27, 2007 and June 28, 2006, the valuation allowance was $5,601,000 and $5,094,000,
respectively. The change in the valuation allowance during 2007 was an increase of $507,000.

Included in the net operating loss carryforwards is $130,000 related to excess stock compensation the
benefit of which will be recorded as additional paid-in-capital if and when realized.

11. Impairment and Restructuring Charges

The Company recorded-an asset impairment charge of $1,073,000 in fiscal 2007 to reduce the carrying
value associated with four of its Gloria Jean’s coffechouses and three Diedrich coffechouses. No provision was
required in fiscal 2005 and 2006.

12. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share from continuing
operations:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 27, 2007 June 28, 2006 June 29, 2005

Numerator:
Net loss from continuing operations $(3,749,000) $(5,453,000) $(2,911,000)

Denominator:
Basic weighted average shares
cutstanding 5,391,000 5,303,000 5,218,000
Effect of dilutive securities — — —

Diluted adjusted weighted average shares 5,391,000 5,303,000 5,218,000

Basic and diluted net loss per share from
continuing operations $ (0.70) $ (1.0%) $ (0.56)

For the years ended June 27, 2007, June 28, 2006 and June 29, 2005, employee stock options of
approximately 555,000, 941,000, and 938,000, respectively, and warranis of 500,000 for each year (as described
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in Note 8), were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as their impact would have been
anti-dilutive. Approximately 1,275,000 stock purchase warrants outstanding in 2007 and approximately 455,000
stock purchase warrants outstanding in 2006 and 20035, pursuant to terms of the Convertible Note Purchase
Agreement were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share for the fiscal years ended June 27,
2007, June 28, 2006 and June 29, 2005 as their impact would have been anti-dilutive. The weighted average
strike price of anti-dilutive securities for the years ended June 27, 2007, June 28, 2006 and June 29, 2005 was
$5.05, $5.00 and $5.85, respectively. .

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 27,2007  June 28,2006  June 29, 2005

Numerator:
Net income (loss) $(1,765,000) $(7,796,000) $14,623,000
Denominator:
Basic and diluted weighted average shares
outstanding 5,391,000 5,303,000 5,218,000
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.33) $ (1.47) $ 2.80

13. Segment Information

The Company has three reportable segments, wholesale operations, franchise operations and retail
operations. The Company evaluates performance of its operating segments based on income before provision for
asset impairment and restructuring costs, income taxes, interest expense, depreciation and amortization, and
general and administrative expenses.

The wholesale operations segment sells coffee products to third parties, franchisees, and company stores,
Reported revenues for the wholesale segment include sales to third parties and franchisees, but sales to company-
operated retail units are eliminated in consclidation. Wholesate segment profit before tax includes a
manufacturing profit on all sales, including those to company-operated retail units, but inter-company profit in
retail unit inventories is eliminated at each period end. Wholesale segment profit before tax also is net of
specifically identified selling, general and administrative expenses as well as costs of the Company’s coffee
roasting facility.

“The franchise operations segment revenues include franchise store opening fees, franchise renewal and
various service fees, roasting fees and royalty fees. Franchise segment profit before tax is net of specifically
identified operating, general and administrative expenses.

The retail operations segment includes only company-operated retail units. Revenues are derived from sales

of products and services by the units. Retail segment profit before tax is net of cost of goods sold and related
occupancy costs, retail-operating expenses and specifically identified general and administrative costs.
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Summarized financial information of continuing operations of the Company’s reportable segments is shown
in the following table. The other total assets consist of corporate cash, corporate notes receivable, corporate
prepaid expenses, corporate property, plant and equipment, income tax refund, assets of discontinued operations
and cash surrender value of life insurance policy. The other component of segment profit before tax includes
corporate general and administrative expenses, provision for asset impairment and restructuring costs,
depreciation and amortization expense, and interest expense.

Wholesale Franchise Retail
Operations Operations  Operations Other Total
(in thousands)

Year ended June 27, 2007

Total revenue $28,145 $3,514 $ 4,948 b —  $36,607
Interest expense — — — 230 230
Depreciation and amortization 533 4 253 269 1,059
Segment profit (loss) before tax 2,679 (644) (1,167} (6,737) (5,869)
Total assets as of June 27, 2007 $17,021 $1,822 S 418 $ 14072 333,333
Year ended June 28, 2006

Total revenue $21,244 $3,775 $ 5,708 $ —  $30,727
Interest expense —_ 3 — 87 90
Depreciation and amortization 519 — 335 323 1,177
Segment profit (loss) before tax 2,772 2,954 (443) (11,296) (6,013)
Total assets as of June 28, 2006 $13,742 $1,798 $ 1,670 $ 16,920 $34,130
Year ended June 29, 2005

Total revenue $16,482 $4,166 $5,149 $ — $257197
Interest expense — 21 — 168 189
Depreciation and amortization 588 — 246 276 1,110
Segment profit (loss) before tax 2,019 3,782 (406) (9,932) (4,537
Total assets as of June 29, 2005 $12,2717 $2,635 $ 2,837 $22564 $40,313

Intercompany sales from wholesale operations to retail operations of $1,710,000 for fiscal year 2007,
$3,220,000 for fiscal year 2006 and $2,819,000 for fiscal year 2005 have been eliminated.
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14. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The quarterly results of operations for the years ended June 27, 2007 and June 28, 2006 were as follows:

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
(in thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal 2007
Total revenue $ 6,832 $ 9,585 $ 8974 $11,216
Operating loss from continuing
operations (1,285) (1,077 (1,063) (2,650
Loss from continuing operations (1,220) (1,047 (1,099) (2,503)
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations before tax (426) (1,082) 5,453 ' 164
Net income (loss) (1,646) (2,129) 4,354 (2,344)
Basic income (loss) per share (03D (0.40) 0.80 (0.42)
Diluted income (loss) per share 030 (0.40) 0.79 (0.42)
Fiscal 2006
Total revenue $ 5,525 $8318 $ 7,558 $ 9,326
Operating loss from continuing
operations (1,785) (799) (1,361) (2,526)
Loss from continuing operations (1,658) (685) (1,262) (2,408)
Loss from discontinued operations
before tax (242) (671) (543) (1,128)
Net loss (1,552) (1,442) (1,684) (3,118)
Basic and diluted loss per share (0.29) 0.27) (0.32) {0.59)

Quarterly operating results are not necessarily representative of operations for a full year for various
reasons, including the seasonal nature of the Company’s business, which may affect sales volume and food costs.
All quarters have 12-week accounting periods, except the fourth quarter, which has a 16-week accounting period.

Between January 2007 and April 2007, the Company sold or closed 39 Diedrich Coffee and Coffee People
leaseholds and related assets. The sale resulted in a gain on disposal of discontinued operations of $3,538,000,
net of $3,876,000 in taxes (see Note I). The tax expense associated with the discontinued operations differed
from the statutory federal effective tax rate primarily due to changes in the valuation allowance and permanently
nondeductible goodwill associated with the discontinued operations.

On February 11, 2005, the Company completed the sale of its Gloria Jean’s international franchise
operations. The sale resulted in a gain on the disposal of discontinued operations of $15,795,000, net of
$3,139,000 in taxes (see Note 1). The tax expense associated with the discontinued operations differed from the
statutory federal effective tax rate primarily due to changes in the valuation allowance and permanently
nondeductible goodwill associated with the discontinued operations,

15. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan

The Company has a 40!(k) Plan that covers eligible employees. The Company contributions to this plan
were $47,000, $53,000 and $55,000 for the fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Deferred Compensation Plan

Effective December 15, 2005, the Company amended its non-qualified deferred compensation plan. Under
the amended plan, participants may elect to defer, on a pre-tax basis, a portion (from 0% to 100%) of their base
salary, service bonus, and performance-based compensation. Any amounts deferred by a participant will be
credited to the participant’s deferred compensation account. The plan further provides that the Company may
make discretionary contributions to a plan participant’s deferred compensation account. Each plan participant
will be vested in the amounts held in the plan participant’s deferred compensation account as follows: (i) one
hundred percent (100%) vested at all times with respect to all amounts of deferred compensation; and (ii) one
hundred percent {100%) vested at all times with respect to all employer discretionary contributions. The
Company made no discretionary contributions to plan participants’ accounts during fiscal year 2007 and fiscal
year 2006.

The plan also provides that any amounts deferred under the plan may not be distributed to a plan participant
until the earlier of: (i) the plan participant’s separation from service with the Company; (ii) the Plan participant’s
retirement from the Company; (iil) the plan participant’s disability; (iv) the plan participant’s death; (v} the
occurrence of a change in control of the Company; (vi) the occurrence of an unforeseeable emergency, as defined
in the plan; or (vii) such other date as set forth in the plan participant’s deferral election, including a date that
occurs prior to the plan participant’s separation from service with the Company. Any amounts distributed to a
plan participant will be paid in a form specified by the plan participant, or in the form of either a lump sum
payment in an amount equal to the plan participant’s deferred compensation account balance or equal annual
installments of the plan participant’s deferred compensation account balance over a period not to exceed (i) 20
years in the case of a distribution due to separation from service, death or disability or (ii) five years in the case
of a distribution for educational expenses.

The Company has purchased a company-owned life insurance (“COLI”) contract insuring two of the
participants in the deferred compensation plan. The policy is held in a trust to provide additional benefit security
for the deferred compensation plan. The assets in the trust are owned by the Company and are subject to claims
of its creditors. The gross cash surrender value of these contracts as of June 27, 2007 was $430,000 as shown in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Total life insurance policy death benefits payable were
$14,889,000 at June 27, 2007. Management intends to use the future death benefits from these insurance
contracts to fund the deferred compensation arrangements; however, there may not be a direct correlation
between the timing of the future cash receipts and disbursements under these arrangements.
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Additional
Balance at Provisions Balance at
Beginning of Provisions Obtainedin  Accounts End of
Period (Recoveries) Acquisitions Written Off Period

Allowance for Bad Debt:
Year ended June 29, 2005 $1,155,000 $829,000 $0 $ (592,000) $1,392,000
Year ended June 28, 2006 $1,392,000 $589,000 $0 $ (118,000) $1,863,000
Year ended June 27, 2007 $1,863,000 $161,000 $0 $(1,861,000 $ 163,000
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Certifications of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certifications of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant 1o Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certifications of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certifications of Chief Financiat Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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*  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

(1) Previously filed as Appendix A to Diedrich Coffee’s Registration Statement on Form 8-4, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 23, 1999,

(2) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 16, 2001.

(3) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (Registration
No. 333-08633), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 28, 1996 and declared
effective on September 11, 1996.

(4) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration
No. 333-66744), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 3, 2001.

(5) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 333-08633), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 24, 1996 and declared
effective on September 11, 1996.

(6) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended January 28, 1998, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 28, 1998,

(7) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 10, 2004, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2004.

(8) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 21, 2000.

(9) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended September 22, 1999, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 1999.

(10} Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (Registration
No. 333-08633), filed with the Securitics and Exchange Commission on August 12, 1996 and declared
effective on September 11, 1996.

(11) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended July 3, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2002.

(12) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 18, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 31, 2003,

(13) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 12, 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 28, 2003.

(14) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Annual Report on Form 10-X for the fiscal year
ended July 2, 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 30, 2003.

(15) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 27, 2001, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 25, 2001,
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(16) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 28, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 27, 2000.

(17} Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 20, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 6, 2000.

(18) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 24, 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2003.

(19) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 17, 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 30, 2004.

(20) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 16, 2005.

(21) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January 5, 2006,

(22) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2006.

(23) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 3, 2004,

(24) Previously filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 28, 2004,

(25) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 8, 2006, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 21, 2006.

{(26) Previously filed as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal ended
June 28, 2007, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 26, 2006.

(27) Previously ftled as an exhibit to Diedrich Coffee’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 28, 2006, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 26, 2006.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Paul C. Heeschen
Chairman of the Board

Greg D. Palmer
J. Russell Phillips
Timothy J. Ryan

OFFICERS:

Stephen V. Coffey
Chief Executive Officer

Sean M. McCarthy
Chief Financial Officer, Vice President and
Secretary

Pamela J. Britton

President and Chief Operating Officer, Gloria
Jean’s

Steven G. Heyman

Vice President—Sales

Stephen W. Leach
Vice President—Coffee

Kimberly A, Myers
Vice Presideni—Marketing, Gloria Jean’s

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS:

28 Executive Park, Suite 200

Irvine, California 92614

Phone: (949) 260-1600
(800) 354-JAVA

STOCK LISTING:

Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq
National Market under the symbol “DDRX”

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS:
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3200 Bristol Street, 4t Floor
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Sean M. McCarthy
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Diedrich Coffee, Inc.
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ANNUAL REPORT:
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